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Directors’ Report

To the Members of Aye Finance Private Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 28™" Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts
of the Company for the Year ended March 31, 2021.

BACKGROUND

Aye Finance Private Limited (“AFPL” or “the Company”) is a Non Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Finance
Company holding a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). The Company is
engaged in the business to provide finance whether short or long term loan or working capital finance to
micro, small and medium scale enterprises, proprietorship or partnership firms.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, STATE OF AFFAIRS
The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2021 is summarized below:

Amount in Rupees crores

Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Revenue from operations 451.31 411.73
Other income 4.73 1.20

Total revenue 456.04 412.93
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 141.40 122.61
Finance costs 191.09 140.87
Impairment on Financial Assets 55.64 65.58
Depreciation and amortization expenses 9.29 7.88
Other expenses 30.26 36.00
Total expenses 432.76 372.94
Profit before tax 23.28 39.99

Tax Expenses 6.39 7.54

Profit after tax 16.89 32.45

Earnings per share

Basic 5.58 11.74
Diluted 5.51 11.59

OPERATIONS, FUND RAISE, PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS
Operational Highlights

The Net loan portfolio of the Company stood at Rs.1500.76 crores as on March 31, 2021.

Loan amount of Rs.668 crores was disbursed in FY 2020-21 representing a decrease of 33% as
compared to FY 2019-20 due to COVID 19.

The Company has operations spread across 211 branches set up in 18 states/ union territories.

During the Financial Year under review, the Company saw a 47.89 % decrease in its profitability with a
net profit after tax of Rs.16.89 crores as compared to Rs.32.45 crores for the year ended March 31, 2020.
Total income has increased from Rs.412.93 crores for the year ended March 31, 2020 to Rs.456.04
crores for the year ended March 31, 2021, which is mainly due to increase in average gross loan
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portfolio of the Company. The Return on Average Loan Assets decreased to 1% in FY 2020-21 as
compared to 2.3% in FY 2019-20. The cost of funds declined to 11.75% in FY 2020-21 as compared to
12.75% in FY 2019-20.

The Company has Long term Credit Rating maintained at India Ratings A- Stable and ICRA BBB+ Stable.
Fund raised during FY 2020-21 -
Resource mobilisation-

During the year under review, your company has continued to diversify the sources of funds and
raised a sum of Rs. 385.39 crores by way of short-term loans, long-term loans, issue of Non-
Convertible Debentures, External Commercial Borrowings which has helped the Company to
achieve its' business target for FY 2020-21. Out of overall borrowings, Company has raised funds
through issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures, has successfully completed four Non-Convertible
Debentures issuance during FY 2020-21 raising Rs. 162.18 crores. The aggregate debt outstanding
as on 31st March, 2021 was Rs. 1325.70 crores. The Company has been regular in servicing all its
debt obligations.

Bank Finance -

Bank Finance remains an important source of funding for your Company. Banks continued their
support to your Company. As of March 31, 2021, borrowings from banks were Rs. 166.75 crores as
against Rs. 115.23 crores in the previous fnancial year.

Impact off Covid-19

Consequent to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Indian government announced a lockdown
in March 2020. Subsequently, the national lockdown was lifted by the government for certain activities
in a phased manner outside specified containment zones, but regional lockdowns/restrictions continued
to be implemented in areas with a significant number of COVID-19 cases.

The impact of COVID-19, including changes in customer behavior and pandemic fears, as well as
restrictions on business and individual activities, has led to significant volatility in global and Indian
financial markets and a significant decrease in global and local economic activities. The slowdown during
the year led to a decrease in loan originations, and collection efficiency.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic, including the current “second wave” that has significantly
increased the number of cases in India, will continue to impact the Company's operations and estimates
related to Impairment of assets including loans to customers, will depend on future developments,
including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic
and any action to contain its spread or mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by
the Company.

Company's Prospects, Future Plans and Business Overview

Given the pandemic the current macro-economic outlook might be colored with pessimism, however,
we believe in the inherent potential in the Indian economy and its financial ecosystem to grow and
thrive in a post pandemic world.



For the Covid-19, Aye Finance has a thought out plan to continue to operate successfully through the
challenges posed by the pandemic.

Customer — During this time of crisis, it is important to stay in touch with customers and help
them in whatever way we can to navigate through these tough times. Given our strong IT
infrastructure back end, we have enabled our people to be actively in touch with the customers.

Employees — The Company has devised a holistic approach to navigate the proposed issues
brought on by the coronavirus pandemic and subsequent lockdowns. This included reworking
targets, and shifting focus from disbursement to collection - temporarily. This was done as part
of an intent to adapt to new changes. The essence of this action plan was two pronged -
developing a Business Continuity Plan, and referencing a Wellness Wheel, aimed at securing
certain significant indications of fulfilment and safety that would in turn benefit business.

The Company has taken essential steps to ensure efficient work- place and moved meetings,
training, etc. to virtual formats. The Company had proactively initiated the work from home as
per the directions issued by the Government of India/ State Governments, at all its office
locations in India.

All staff and employees have been briefed regarding safety measures to be followed. There are
regular communications and awareness programs from the Culture & Talent Management Team
to all the employees encouraging them to adopt safe practices and follow the prescribed
circulars/ guidelines/ advisories of the government to contain the spread of COVID -19 via
emails and other means of communications.

Liquidity —The Company has maintained sufficient liquidity Rs. 496.98 Crores as on March 31,
2021. The liquidity position of the Company is adequate for meeting its future debt obligations
and business requirement for around 6 months.

Credit Quality — We conducted an internal assessment of the potential impact of Covid-19 on
our clusters. Based on this assessment, we devised granular interdepartmental strategies to
coordinate the Distribution, Credit and Collections and Customer Service teams to achieve
optimal roll-down rates of repayment dues. Further, we reached out to our customers and
informed them about the benefits of continuous payment and costs of moratorium, so that they
could take an informed decision.

Future plan and outlook — we remain cautiously optimistic.

In the immediate term, whereas there would be an impact on the overall financial sector and MSMEs
lenders in particular; we at Aye Finance are reasonably confident to overcome the challenges given our
experienced management team, focused field staff, robust processes and supportive financiers.

In the long term, we would like to be in a state of preparedness for the post Covid-19 world and would
be ready to support and partner with our customers to help them face new business realities. We
remain firmly bullish and committed to India’s potential and growth story.

RESERVE

The Company is required to create a statutory reserve under Section of 45IC of RBI Act, 1934 and
transfer therein a sum not less than 20% of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss
account and before any dividend is declared. During FY 20-21 an amount of Rs. 3.38 Crores has been
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transferred to such reserve. An amount of Rs. 3.53 Crores has been transferred to Share option
outstanding account during FY 20-21.

DIVIDEND
During the year under review, the company has earned a Profit after Tax of Rs. 16.89 crores. However
the Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend for FY 2020-21.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As on 31%t March, 2021, authorized Capital of the Company was Rs. 34.60 Crores, Issued, Subscribed and
fully Paid-up capital was Rs. 30.45 crores.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Our Company is a Non-Deposit accepting Non-Banking Finance Company and has not accepted any
public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any public deposits during the year
under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. The risk management process
is governed by the enterprise wide risk management framework which is overseen by the senior
management. They review compliance with risk policies, monitor risk tolerance limits, review and
analyze risk exposure related to specific issues and provides oversight of risk across the organization.

The risk management framework covers integrated risk management mainly comprising Credit Risk,
Market Risk, Operational Risk, Regulatory Risk and Information Technology Risk. The Credit Risk
management structure includes documented credit policies and procedures for each financial product.
The risk policies define prudential limits, portfolio criteria, exceptional approval metrics, etc. and cover
risk assessment for new product offerings. Concentration Risk is managed by diversifying into different
geographies and sectors.

Risks associated with frauds are mitigated through fraud risk monitoring procedures. The company has a
strong field vigilance function that ensures checks and balances at the field level with respect to end use
of loans, adherence to policies and sourcing practices. Fraud risk is monitored through oversight by
senior management, who review matters relating to fraud risk, including corrective and remedial actions
as regards people and processes.

The Company has a Risk Committee which meets once every quarter to assess the risk appetite of the
Company and to review the risk profile of the organization to ensure that risk is not higher than the risk
appetite determined by the board.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, protection and
conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and compliance with laws
and regulations. The internal control system is supported by an internal audit process for reviewing the
adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal controls, including its systems and processes and
compliance with regulations and procedures. The Company’s internal control system is commensurate
with the size, nature and operations of the Company.

Your Company has in place strong internal audit processes and systems which design an audit plan to
ensure optimum portfolio quality and keep risks at bay. Internal Audit department takes care of internal
control processes. There is a risk based audit methodology covering all key functions of the company,



planned based on various risk based parameters. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,
comprising of Independent Directors, periodically reviews the internal audit reports, covering findings,
adequacy of internal controls, and ensure compliances. The Audit Committee also meets the Company’s
Statutory Auditors to ascertain their views on the financial statements, including the financial reporting
system, compliance to accounting policies and procedures, adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
controls and systems followed by the Company. Information System Security controls enable the
Company to keep a check on technology-related risks and also improve business efficiency and
distribution capabilities. Your Company is committed to invest in IT systems, including back-up systems,
to improve the operational efficiency, customer service and decision-making process.

MATERIAL EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, which
has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2021 and the date of
this report.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Statement related to Subsidiary Company has been given in Form AOC-1 in Annexure — A forming part
of this Report. Further the Company has neither any Associates nor any Joint Ventures as on March 31,
2021.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy Rules 2014, the Company has stablished the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee. The Board adopted the CSR Policy, formulated and recommended by the CSR Committee,
and the same is available at (https://ayefin.com/policies/).

During the period under review, the Company has contributed Rs. 0.51 Crores to Foundation for Micro
Enterprises(FAME) which is a not-for-profit company, within the meaning of Section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (erstwhile Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956), was incorporated in India on April 4, 2019.
FAME carries out CSR activities under the direction and policy on CSR adopted by Aye Finance Private
Limited in line with the schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company primarily focusses on
projects or programs that include promoting and development of (a) livelihoods, (b) rural development
(c) skill development (d) and benefit of the socially weaker section

In FY 20-21, FAME focused on two important areas: a) Building marketing management skills to enhance
livelihood of unorganized micro businesses in small towns b) Improving the effectiveness of dairy
farming in rural and semi urban locations.

As per the requirement of Rule 8 of the Companies Corporate Social Responsibilities Rules, 2014 the
Annual Report on CSR is annexed as Annexure - B to this report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal and statutory and the external consultants
and the reviews performed by Management and the relevant Committees, including the Board is of the
opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during financial year
2020-21.
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Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors to the best of their knowledge
and ability, confirm that:

i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

iii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditors & their reports

M/s S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No.
101049W/E300004 have been appointed on the recommendation of Audit Committee and the Board of
Director’s (in conformity with the provisions of Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies Audit and Auditors Rules, 2014 including any amendments thereto, as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of 27th Annual General Meeting of
the Company till the conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors' Reports for the financial year 2020-21 does not contain any qualification, reservation,
adverse remark or disclaimer. Further, there were no instances of any fraud reported by the Statutory
Auditor to the Board pursuant to Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Auditors & their Report:

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder and based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s.
Brajesh Kumar & Associates, Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2020-21 in its meeting dated June 25, 2021.The Company has provided all the assistance
and the facilities to the Secretarial Auditors for conducting the Secretarial Audit. Secretarial Audit
Report as provided by the Secretarial Auditors is also annexed to this Report, in the prescribed Form
MR-3, as Annexure C. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation,
adverse remarks, or disclaimer.

The Board has placed on record its sincere appreciation for the services rendered by M/s. Brajesh Kumar
& Associates, Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the Company.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS u/s 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

No such case has been reported by the Auditors u/s 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 in their report.
However during the year under review, two instances of fraud has been reported by the Company to
Reserve Bank of India in compliances with the RBI norms on monitoring and reporting of Frauds.



NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors met 10 times during the year under review. The meetings were held on following

dates-
Sr. No. Meeting date Sr. No. Meeting date
1. 22/04/2020 6. 30/09/2020
2. 21/05/2020 7. 02/12/2020
3. 12/06/2020 8. 11/12/2020
4, 27/07/2020 9. 29/01/2021
5. 17/08/2020 10. 23/03/2021

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors, along with the Committees of the Board, provides leadership and guidance to
the Company’s Management and directs, supervises and controls the activities of the Company. As on
March 31, 2021, The Board of Directors of your Company consists of total nine Directors.

During the year under review following changes have been made in the Board of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company were as below-

Name Designation | DIN Date of Director of the | Remarks
Appointment/ Company since
Resignation/Change | (in case of
in designation resignation)
Mr. Vikram Director 06530212 19/04/2020 - | Change in
Jetley Designation from
Whole-time
Director to Non-
executive
Director
Mr. Kaushik | Director 07719742 09/10/2020 - | Appointment
Anand
Kalyana
Krishnan

Disclosure under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached herewith as Annexure D.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION “CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENCE U/S 149(6) FROM INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

The Board has Independent Directors and there is an appropriate balance of skills, experience and
knowledge in the Board to enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively. The
Independent Directors have submitted disclosure that they meet the criteria of independence as
provided under Section 149 (6) of Companies Act, 2013

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
As at year end, the Board of Directors of the Company has following committees:
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Type of Committee

Members

Audit Committee

Mr.

Vinay Baijal, Committee Chairman

Mr.

Navin Kumar Maini, Member

Mr.

Sanjay Sharma, Member

Mr.

Utsav Mitra, Falcon representative (Special Invitee)

Mr.

Ashish Garg, LGT representative (Special Invitee)

Risk Committee

Mr.

Navin Kuma Maini, Committee Chairman

Mr.

Vinay Baijal, Member

. Sanjay Sharma, Member

. Vivek Mathur, Director (Special Invitee)

. Samir Mehta, Deputy CEO (Special Invitee)

. Utsav Mitra, Falcon representative (Special Invitee)

. Ujual George, Chief Risk Officer (Special Invitee)

Asset and Liabilities Committee
(ALCO)

. Sanjay Sharma, Committee Chairman

. Vikram Jetley, Director

. Vivek Mathur, Director

. Ashish Sharma, Chief Financial officer (resigned wef

16/04/2021)

. Sumiran Das, Director

. Navroz Darius Udwadia, Director

. Ujual George, Chief Risk Officer

. Samir, Deputy CEO

. Utsav Mitra, Falcon representative

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

. Kanika Tandon Bhal, Committee Chairperson

. Navin Kumar Maini, Member

. Kartik Srivatsa, Member

. Kaushik Anand, Member

. Sanjay Sharma, Special Invitee

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee

. Kanika Tandon Bhal, Committee Chairperson

. Sanjay Sharma, Member

. Kartik Srivatsa, Member

Working Committee of ALCO

. Sanjay Sharma, Committee Chairman

. Samir Mehta, Deputy CEO

. Ashish Sharma, Chief Financial officer (resigned wef

16/04/2021)

Mr.

Ram Sachdeva, DVP Finance

Mr.

Shivam Arora, AVP Finance

Information Technology Steering
Committee

Mr.

Sanjay Sharma, Committee Chairman

Mr.

Samir Mehta, Deputy CEO

Mr.

Ujual George, Chief Risk Officer

Mr. Ashish Sharma, Chief Financial officer (resigned wef
16/04/2021)
Mr. Piyush Maheshwari, Vice President 2 Credit

Mr.

Vinod Kumar, Information security Manager

Mr.

Niraj Kaushik, Chief Credit Officer
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Mr. Gaurav Khurana-Chief Technology Officer

Mr. Ravinder Oberoi-Head of Audit & Vigilance

Mr. Ankur Sharma, Head HR

Mr. Abhishek Sharma, Vice President Distribution

Mr. Mayank Mathur- Head Operations and Service Quality

Mr. Sukhwinder Singh-Head Collection
Mr. Tejamoy Ghosh — Head DSAI

Mr. Sovan Satyaprakash — Head Strategy
Mr. Neeraj Sachdev — Head Administration

Information Technology Strategy | Mr. Sanjay Sharma, Committee Chairman

Committee Mr. Samir Mehta, Deputy CEO

Mr. Ujual George, Chief Risk Officer

Mr. Ashish Sharma, Chief Financial officer (resigned wef
16/04/2021)

Mr. Niraj Kaushik, Chief Credit Officer

Mr. Gaurav Khurana-Chief Technology Officer

Mr. Ravinder Oberoi-Head of Audit & Vigilance

COMPLIANCE

The Company has complied and continues to comply with all the applicable regulations and guidelines
issued by RBI such as Capital Adequacy, Net Owned Funds, provisioning for Non-Performing Assets and
for Standard Assets, Concentration of Credit and Investment, filings, etc. The Capital Adequacy Ratio
(“CAR”) of the Company was 41.18% as on March 31, 2021.

POLICIES

VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors have formulated a Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance with
the provisions of Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Specifically, employees can raise concerns
regarding any discrimination, harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against
them or any instances of fraud by or against your Company. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on
website of the Company (https://ayefin.com/policies/).

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has adopted Nomination and Remuneration policy which looks after the company’s policy
on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of a director etc. Nomination and remuneration policy of the Company is
published on website of the Company (https://ayefin.com/policies/).

REGULATORY ACTION/APPROVAL
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and its operations of the Company in future.

COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable on the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES
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As on March 31, 2021 the company had 3856 permanent employees at its branches, Regional office and
Head office. The company recognizes the importance of human value and ensures that proper
encouragement both moral and financial is extended to employees to motivate them. The company
enjoyed excellent relationship with workers and staff during the year under review.

ENERGY CONSERVATION &TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The operations of the Company, being Financial Services related, require normal consumption of
electricity. The Company is taking every necessary step to reduce the consumption of energy. In view of
the nature of activities carried on by the Company, there is no capital investment on energy
conservation equipment.

Your Company, being engaged in financing business within the Country, does not have any activity
relating to conservation of energy. The Directors, therefore, have nothing to report on conservation of
energy.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

The Company has seen successful implemented Lead Management, Loan Origination, Collection
Management, Navision ERP and Data Warehouse systems. The company has also adopted the policies as
per the RBI mater directions applicable on Systemically Important NBFCs. With new systems in place,
the Company has achieved seamless flow of data across various systems, making information flow faster,
more robust and reliable. The company has also set up the Data Science department.

The initiatives by Data Science and Artificial Intelligence (DSAI) department are focusing on use cases to
help data-driven decision-making using data-insights, Al/ML models, and intelligent automation of
processes. In addition to a couple of initial projects including a machine learning model for behavioural
scoring of customers. The Company has also initiated working on streamlining and collating data from
multiple systems and sources into a coherent repository — a data lake which would be a key enabler
infrastructure for many of the future DSAI projects allowing seamless access to most of the data
generated across the organization in a timely manner.

Your Company, being engaged in financing business within the Country, does not have any activity
relating to technology absorption and export of materials, goods or services. The Directors, therefore,
have nothing to report on Technology absorption.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The Company has NIL foreign exchange earnings during the year under review. The Company has
incurred following expenditure in foreign currency during the year under review.
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Name of the Foreign Party Amount paid | Currency | Foreign Currency | Purpose of
in INR amount (FCY) payment

1\ MICROFINANZFONDS | 4,237,500.00 | EURO 50,000.00 Commitment

KAPSTADTRING HAMBURG Fee

GERMANY

1\ MICROFINANZFONDS | 2,166,500.00 | EURO 25,000.00 Commitment

KAPSTADTRING 8 Fee

HAMBURG GERMANY

1\ MICROFINANZFONDS | 47,030,222.88 | EURO 204,197.50 Interest on ECB

KAPSTADTRING 8 loan

HAMBURG GERMANY

v MICROFINANZFONDS | 23,847,741.78 | EURO 96,332.22 Interest on ECB

KAPSTADTRING 8 loan

HAMBURG GERMANY

RESPONSIBILITY  FINANCIAL | 19,525,109.59 | USD 148,250.00 Interest on ECB

INCLUSION INVESTMENT loan

2019

RESPONSIBILITY ~ FINANCIAL | 9,739,671.23 | USD 148,250.00 Interest on ECB

INCLUSION INVESTMENT loan

2019

AAV SARL 3,858,750.00 | USD 53,106.94 Commitment
Fee

MASALA INVESTMENT SARL 3,858,750.00 usD 53,106.94 Commitment
Fee

There was no unhedged foreign currency exposure in the Company as on 31t March 2021.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors have formulated a policy for performance
evaluation (same is covered under the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company of its own
performance, of various mandatory Committees of the Board and of the individual Directors).

In view of the Board approved Nomination and Remuneration Policy, the Independent Directors in their
separate meeting held on 23" March, 2021 under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 had:
i reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;
ii. reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of
executive and non-executive Directors; and
iii.  Assessed the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information between the Company
management and the Board that was necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform their duties.

Further, in terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the performance
evaluation process of all the Independent and Non-Independent Directors of the Company were carried
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out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on September 23, 2021 and
made recommendation to the Board. The Board took into consideration the recommendation received
from the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and completed the performance evaluation
process. The entire performance evaluation process was completed to the satisfaction of Board.

ANNUAL RETURN

Annual Return under Section 92(3) of the Act and the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules,
2014, will be published at website of the Company ( https://ayefin.com/financial-statements/) post the
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

The particulars of Investments u/s 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been furnished in Note 7 to the
Financial Statement forming part of this report. There was no loan given or Guarantee provided as
covered under the provision of Section 186 of the Act.

PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has put in place a policy for Related Party Transactions (RPT Policy), which has been
approved by the Board of Directors. The Policy provides for identification, necessary approvals by the
Audit Committee/ Board, reporting and disclosure requirements in compliance with the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013. All transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related
parties were on arms' length basis and in the ordinary course of business. All such RPTs were placed
before the Audit Committee/ Board for approval wherever applicable.

Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions with Related Parties on an arm’s length
basis with respect to transactions as required under Section 188 (1) of the Act, in the prescribed Form
No. AOC-2, is attached as Annexure E.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every
individual working in company’s premises through various interventions and practices. The Company
always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and
harassment including sexual harassment.

The Company has in place a robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. The policy
aims at prevention of harassment of employees and lays down the guidelines for identification,
reporting and prevention of sexual harassment.

There is an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) which is responsible for redressal of complaints related
to sexual harassment and follows the guidelines provided in the policy. During the year ended 31st
March, 2021, there was one case reported to the committee and the same has been disposed by the
Committee.
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Annexure-A

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lakhs.)

SI. No. Particulars Details

1. Name of the subsidiary Foundation for Advancement of
Micro Enterprises

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different N.A.
from the holding company’s reporting period

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of | N.A.
the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
4. Share capital Authorised Share Capital-INR

1,00,00,000
Issued Paid up and subscribed-

25,00,000
5 Reserves & surplus INR 7.02
6. Total assets INR 36.56
7. Total Liabilities INR 36.56
8 Investments NA
9. Turnover NA
10. | Surplus before taxation INR 8.09
11. | Provision for taxation INR 2.09
12. | Surplus after taxation INR 5.99
13. | Proposed Dividend NA
14. | % of shareholding 100%

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and
Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Not Applicable

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of Holding%

3. Description of how there is significant influence




4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit/Loss for the year

Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

For Aye Finance Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Sanjay Sharma Vikram Jetley
(Managing Director) (Director)

Din: 03337545 Din: 06530212

Date: 24" September 2021
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Annexure-B

The Annual Report on CSR Activities for F.Y.20-21

A brief outline of the CSR policy of the company:

Aye plans to empower and enable the micro enterprises through non-financial guidance and support,
so that they may build a modern and vibrant commercial community that can compete in the world
and thereby create value for their customers, employees and owners. Aye’s CSR activities will primarily
focus on professionalizing micro enterprises and improving quality of lives through social development
projects.

Aye has incorporated FAME, a wholly owned Section 8 subsidiary. FAME has been set up for planning
and implementing the CSR activities and providing non-financial support to the target beneficiaries.
During the Financial Year 20-21 FAME ran the following programs for building the capabilities of the
micro entrepreneur segment —

Improving effectiveness of Dairy Farming in Rural and Semi — urban locations - With the intent of
supporting Dairy Farmers through credible healthcare advisory and consultancy on improving the
productivity of their livestock, FAME launched its flagship program The Dairy Development Program in
its first year of operations (2091-20) in Meerut and has been supporting the dairy farmers of the
district since then. This year we strengthened the program expanding it to two more districts of
Bharatpur and Mathura. In the first half of the year when containment measures were enforced and
movement on the field was restricted, the advisory sessions were conducted digitally and in the second
half of the year the sessions were moved back to the physical mode.

Building marketing management and technical skills to enhance livelihood of unorganized micro
businesses in small towns

Sports Manufacturers — Meerut - Last year FAME had launched a program for the Sports Manufacturers
of Meerut to provide guidance on optimal practices in manufacturing and marketing sports goods. The
program delivered knowledge and skills around Improving quality of products, enhancing marketing
capabilities and improving compliance levels & business documentation. This year the pandemic
outbreak caused unprecedented damage to this segment of businesses. FAME handheld these
businessmen through these trying times organizing online advisory sessions for them on COVID
prevention at their workplaces and when they go out to the market. Help was also provided at an
individual level to the members who needed guidance on compliances and market linkages

Show Artisans — Agra - This year FAME also launched a program for the shoe artisans of Agra in
collaboration with Central Footwear Training Institute (CFTI) Agra, Ministry of MSME. FAME members
were trained by the CFTI faculty on all the aspects of shoes manufacturing along with providing them
exposure to the technical advancements in their industry. The members also received advisory on how
to access various online marketing portals to increase their avenues of sales.

19



Additional Social Projects undertaken during the Year

This year when the pandemic hit it created unprecedented healthcare crises throughout the country
and this battle was fought from the forefront by the corona warriors who did not have the luxury of
staying at home and risked their lives to keep us safe. To express our solidarity and to honor and
recognize the selfless acts and efforts of millions of these frontline and essential workers, FAME
organized felicitation ceremonies across 160 cities. Over 1600 branch employees of Aye Finance under
the Employee Volunteer Program participated in this activity and over 5000 doctors, healthcare
workers, policemen, healthcare workers and municipal workers were felicitated.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee-

Sr. Name of Director Designation/Nature Number of CSR Number of
No. of Directorship committee held meetings of CSR
during the year Committee
attended during
the year
i Ms. Kanika Tandon Bhal Independent Director | 01 01
iii. Mr. Sanjay Sharma Managing Director 01 01
iiii. Mr. Kartik Srivatsa Director 01 01

3. Web-link of the Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the company.
CSR Policy
CSR Projects

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014- Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year- Not Applicable

6. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years- INR 24.47 Crores

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)- INR 0.49 Crores
(b)Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years-
N.A.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any- N.A.
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year: INR 0.49 Crores
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8.

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year : INR 0.49 Crores

Total Amount Spent
for
Year. (in Crores.)

the Financial

Amount Unspent (in Crores.)

Total

Amount transferred to

Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6).

Amount

transferred to

any fund
specified under Schedule VII as per
second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
Transfer the Fund transfer
INR 0.49 Crores - - - - -
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) | () (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
SILN | Name of the Item Local | Location Dura | Amount Amount Amount
o Project from area | of the tion | allocated | spent in | transferred
the list (Yes/ | project(Sta for the | the to Unspent
of No). | teand project current CSR
activitie District) (inRs.) financial Account
sin Year (in for the
Schedul Rs.). project as
e Vil to per Section
the Act. 135(6) (in
Rs.)
i. | Improving Covered | Yes Meerut Ongo | 25,00,000 | 22,41,029
effectiveness of (Uttar ing
Dairy Farming in Pradesh)
Rural and Semi —
ban | ) Mathura
urban locations (Uttar
Pradesh)
Bharatpur
(Rajasthan)
ii. | Building marketing | Covered Meerut Ongo | 5,00,000 5,49,899
management and (Uttar ing
technical skills to Pradesh)
enhance livelihood
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Advancement of
Micro
Enterprises

of unorganized Agra
micro businesses in (Uttar
small towns Pradesh)
iii. | Additional Social Covered | Yes All cities Ongo | 10,55,000 | 6,77,489
Projects Aye has ing
undertaken during presence in
the Year — COVID
Warrior Felicitation
Program
Total - - - - 40,55,000 | 34,68,417
(10) (11)
Sr. Mode of Mode of Implementation -
No. | Implementation(Di | Through Implementing
rect-Yes/No) Agency
Name CSR
Registratio
n No.
Yes Foundation for In process

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) | (2 (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

SI. | Name of | Item Local area | Location Amount spent | Mode Mode of
No | the from the | (Yes/No). of the for the project | of implementa
Project list of project(Sta | (in Rs.). impl.eme tion -

activities te and ntatlcfn Through
. L. on- Direct | . .
in District) (Yes/No) implementi
schedule ng agency
VIl to
the Act.

1 Donation Covered National National 5,00,000 Yes N.A.

to PM
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Cares Fund

2 Donation Covered National National 3,00,000 Yes N.A.
to Mera
Gaon
Mera Desh

3 Kilkari Covered National National 84,900 Yes N.A.

Total 8,84,900

(d) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: Rs.. 84,907/-
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year: INR 48,55,000/-
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: N.A.
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year: N.A.

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): Not Applicable.

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5)- Not Applicable

By Order of the Board

For Aye Finance Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Kanika Tandon Bhal Sanjay Sharma
(Chairman of CSR Committee) (Director)
DIN: 06944916 DIN: 03337545

Date: 24th September, 2021



Annexure-C

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31“March, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule

No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]
To,

The Members,

AYE Finance Private Limited
M-5,Magnum House-I,
Community Centre,
Karampura,

New Delhi-110015

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
corporate practices adhered by Aye Finance Private Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms, website and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company, to the extent the information provided
by the Company , its officer (Company Secretary), agents, authorised representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the relaxation
granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India
warranted due to the spread of the covid-19 pandemic. We hereby report that in my opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March 2021
generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and

subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March 2021 according to the

provisions of:

V)
(it)

(i)
(iv)

V)

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

®

(2

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA”) and the rules made
there under;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed thereunder;
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to extent of Indirect Foreign Direct Investment.
The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading)Regulations,2015;(NotApplicable)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital andDisclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;(Not Applicable, the company notissue)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares Based Employee Benefit
Regulation), 2014;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
DebtSecurities) Regulations,2008;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;(Not Applicable as the company not registered as Registrars or
Shares TransferAgents)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations,2009; and (Not Applicable as no reporting events duringperiod

under review)
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities)Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable as no reporting events in

the Company duringperiod under review)

(1) Other regulation as applicable and (Circular and Guideline issuetherein)

(vi)  the other lawsand regulations applicable on the company are mentioned below:
(a.) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(b.) Specific requirement for NBFC under RBI Acts, Regulations, Directions,
Notifications and amendments from time to time by RBI.

(c.) Specific provision of Labour Law

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

@) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries oflndia
with respect to Board and General Meetings.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited or
Stock Exchange(s),if applicable;

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice was given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings.Agenda and

detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance other than those held on

short notice and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.



clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting.

Majority decisions are carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes. (There were no dissenting views and all the resolutions were

passed unanimously.)).

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. (At Present, the Company Secretary

monitors compliance under Compliance Department)

We further report thatduring the audit period the company has issue of debentures through

private placement, etc.

Place: Delhi Brajesh Kumar & Associates
Date: 21/09/2021 Company Secretary
UDIN: Brajesh Kumar

FCS No.: 6965, CP No.:7497
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Disclosures in terms of Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Annexure D

Sr. No. | Particulars Remarks
1. The ratio of the remuneration* of each director to the | FY 2020-21:
median remuneration of the employees of the Managing Director-60
company for the financial year Whole-time Director-NA
2. Percentage increase in remuneration* of each | FY 2019-20 to FY 2020-21:
director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Managing Director-41%
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Whole-time Director-NA
financial year; Chief Financial officer-14%
Company Secretary-0%
3. Percentage increase in the median remuneration* of | 8%
employees in the financial year;
4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of | 3856 as on 31 March 2021
company
5. Average percentage increase in the salaries of | Average percentage increase
employees other than the managerial personnel in the | in the salaries of:
last financial year and its comparison with the employees other than the
percentage increase in the managerial remuneration managerial personnel - 8%
and justification thereof and point out if there are any managerial personnel -
exceptional circumstances for increase in the 26%  (Market aligned
managerial remuneration; correction for managerial
personnel)
6. Affirmation that the remuneration* is as per the | The Board has adopted a
remuneration policy of the company Nomination and Remuneration
policy of the Company. The
remuneration given to
Managing Director, Whole-
time Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary
are in confirmation with their
contract of employment.
7. Names of the top ten employees in terms of
remuneration drawn and the name of every
employee, who-
if employed throughout the financial year, was | Nil
in receipt of remuneration for that year which,
in the aggregate, was not less than one crore
and two lakh rupees;
if employed for a part of the financial year, | Nil
was in receipt of remuneration for any part of
that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate,
was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand
rupees per month;
if employed throughout the financial year or | Nil
part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in
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that year which, in the aggregate, or as the
case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate,
is in excess of that drawn by the managing
director or whole-time director or manager
and holds by himself or along with his spouse
and dependent children, not less than two
percent of the equity shares of the company.

* Remuneration for this calculation includes Annualised Fixed Annual Cash Salary and Annual

bonus

For and on Behalf of Aye Finance Private Limited

Sd/-

(Sanjay Sharma)
Managing Director
DIN: 03337545

Sd/-

(Vikram Jetley)
Director
DIN:06530212
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Annexure -E

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended March
31, 2021, which were not at arm’s length basis

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the
Company has entered into transactions with related parties at arm’s length basis, the details of
which are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

For Aye Finance Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Sanjay Sharma Vikram Jetley
Managing Director Director

DIN: 03337545 DIN:06530212

Date: 24" September 2021

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Acecountants

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Aye Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aye Finance Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting poficies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
("the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its
profit including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for QOpinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs™),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the '‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We helieve
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter - Assessment of COVID 19 Impact

We draw attention to Note 54 to the financial statements, which describes the uncertainties arising from
COVID 19 pandemic and impacting the Company’s operations and estimates especially those relating to
impairment of loans, which are dependent on future developments regarding the severity and duration of
the pandemic.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter beiow, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
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Chartered Accountants

financial statements section of our report, including in relation te these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.

 Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter |
Ca) Impairment of loans as at the balance sheet date (expected credit losses) '

(as described in note 2.18 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements)

109") requires the Company to provide for

impairment of its Loans using the Expected

Credit Losses (“ECL") approach,.

In the process, a significant degree of

judgement has been applied by the

management for:

a) Defining gualitative/ guantitative
credit risk” ("SICR") and ‘default’.

b) Determining effect of less frequent past
events on future probability of default,

¢) Grouping of borrowers based on
homogeneity by  using appropriate
statistical techniques;

d} Determining macro-economic  factors
impacting credit quality of receivables;

Additional consideration on account of
cCoviD-19

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted
many economies around the globe. Businesses
are being forced to cease or limit operations
for long or indefinite periods of time. Measures
taken to contain the spread of the virus,
| including travel bans, quarantines, social
distancing, and closures of non-essential
services have triggered significant disruptions
to businesses, resulting in an economic
slowdown and economic uncertainties.
Measures have also been taken by the
Government and the Reserve Bank to ease the
burden on businesses from hardship.

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circular
dated March 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020 {"RBI
Circulars") allowing lending institutions to
effer moratorium to borrowers on payment of
instalments falling due between March 1, 2020
| and August 31, 2020, the Company has
extended moratorium to its borrowers in

thresholds for ‘significant increase in |

‘Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments (“Ind AS | Our audit procedures included the following:

Considered the Company's accounting
policies for impairment of loans and
assessed compliance with the policies in
terms of Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments
and the governance framework approved
by the Board of Directors pursuant to
Reserve Bank of India quidelines issued on
March 13, 2020, (“the RBI Guidelines').

Assessed the Company's policy  with
respect to moraterium pursuant to the RBI
Circulars and tested the implementation of
such policy on a sample basis.

Read and assessed the Company's policy
with respect to one-time restructuring
offered to customers pursuant to the
"Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
(MSME) sector - Restructuring of
Advances” issued by RBI on August 6,
2020 and tested the implementation of |
such policy on a sample basis. |

|
FPerformed inguiries with the Company's
management and its risk management
function to assess the impact of lock-down
on the business activities of the Company.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by understanding
the process of ECL estimation and related
assumptions and tested the controls
around extraction and wvalidation of the
input data used.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans
based on their past-due status to check
compliance with requirement of Ind AS
109. Tested a sample of performing (stage |
1) loans to assess whether any SICR or foss |
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accordance with its Board approved policy.
Measures have also been taken by the
Government and the Reserve Bank to ease the
burden on businesses from hardship, pursuant
to the Reserve Bank of India circular dated
August 6, 2020 for "Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises (M5ME} sector - Restructuring of
Advances” allowing lending institutions to
implement a resclution plan in respect of its
eligible exposures, subject to specified
conditions,

The guidance by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAIY), provides
extension of maoratorium toe borrowers at a
mass scale, based on RBI directives, by itself is
not considered to result in a SICR for such
borrowers., The Company has recorded a
management overlay as part of its ECL, to
reflect among other things an increased risk of
deterioration in  macro-economic factors
caused by COVID-19 pandemic. Given the
unique nature of the pandemic and the extent
of its economic impact which depends on
future developments including governmental
and regulatory measures and the Company's
responses thereto, the actual credit loss can
be different than that being estimated.

In view of the high degree of management's

judgement involved in estimation of ECL,

accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic,

impairment of loans as at the balance sheet

date (including provision for expected credit
losses) is a key audit matter,

Other Matter

indicators were present requiring them to
be classified under stage 2 (i.e. default in
repayment is within the range of 31 to 90
days) or stage or 3 (i.e. the default in
repayment is more than 90 days).

« Assessed the additional considerations
applied by the management for staging of
loans as SICR or default categories in view
of Company's policy on moratorium.

« Tested the ECL model, including
assumptions and underlying computation.
Tested the input data used for determining
the probability of default (PD) and loss
given default (LGD) rates and compared
the data with the underlying books of
accounts and records.

s Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision performed
by the Campany.

» Tested assumptions used by the
management in determining the overlay
for macro-economic factors (including
COVID-19 pandemic) pursuant to RBI
Guidelines.

e Assessed the adeguacy of disclosures
included in the financial statements in
respect of expected credit losses with the
requirements of Ind AS 107 and 109
including specific disclosures made in the
financial statements with regards to the

impact of CoVID-19 on ECL estimation, .

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on July 27, 2020,

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The above report is expected to be

made available to us after the date of this auditor's report,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
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form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other infarmation is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with the Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
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reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a gaing concern,

L Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 21,
2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or reguiation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Repert on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.



S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(d)

(&)

(f)

(g

{h)

For 5.R.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis af the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such centrais, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the yvear ended March 31, 2021;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditers) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iiii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

BATLIBOI & ASSDC|ATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
IC irm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra

Partner

Membership Number: 094533 [
UDIN: 21094533AAAAFWBS46 |
Place of Signature: Gurugram L

Date: June 25, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reguirements"” of our report of even date

Re: Aye Finance Private Limited ("the Company')

(iXa)

(bl

(Xch

(i)

Ciii}

(iv)

{v)

(vi)

(viid(ad

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and location of fixed assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is
a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us, there are no immovable properties included in property, plant and
equipment/fixed assets of the Company and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(iXc)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
clause 3(ii) of the Grder are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us,
the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iiiXa), (b) and (¢} of the Order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended)., Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3({v) of the Qrder are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of any
goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in few cases. The
provisions relating to sales tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess are not
applicable to the Company,

(vii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us,

ne undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-
tax, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company.

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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(viiXc) According to the informatien and explanations given to us, there are no dues of employee's state

Cviii)

{in)

(x)

{xl)

Cxiid

{iii)

(xiv)

(xw)

insurance, goods and service tax, service tax and cess which have not been deposited on account

of dispute. The provision relating to sales tax, custom duty, excise duty and value added tax are

currently not applicable to the Company. Details of dues of Income Tax which have not been

deposited as on March 31, 2021 on account of disputes are given below:

| Name of Statue | Nature of Dues | Forum  where | Period to which | Amount (in Rs. |
pending | it relates | Crores) ‘

Income Tax [ CITCA) AY 2017-18 2.44

L __|

| Income Tax Act,
1961* i | |
*The Company has paid Rs. 0.48 crores as demand against protest.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer. Further, money raised by the Company by way of non-convertible debentures and
term loans were applied for the purpose for which those were raised, though idle/ surplus funds
which were not required for immediate utilization were gainfully invested in liquid assets payable
on demand,

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purposes of reparting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud/material fraud on the Company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of the private placement of shares / fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year. According to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that
the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

According to the infermation and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,
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(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

For 5.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

P B oo,
per Amit Kabra "{u %
Partner ji=s
Membership Number: 094533
UDIN: 21094533 AAAAFWB546 ";‘E.‘:L" :
Place: Gurugram ==

Date: June 25, 2021
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements of Aye Finance
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting ("Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI") . These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Mote and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143010 of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements, including obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable

N e
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to These Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may eccur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls  with
reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control gver
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential coemponents of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the |CAL

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Kabra i
Partner i< 15
Membership Number: 094533 | . 2y
iy ._ f__r"
UDIN: 21094533AAAAFWB546

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021
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Aye Finance Private Limited
Balance Sheat as at March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Rs. crores unless atherwise stated

Particulars Note No.,  For the Year ended
March 31, 2021

For the Year ended
March 31, 2020

ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 191.60 172.18
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 167.17 36.68
Derivative Mnancial instruments 5 = 3.28
Loans b 1,.500.76 1,716.82
Investments 7 198.17 6.88
Other financial assets 8 16.68 1.64
MNon-Financial Assets
Current tax assets (MNet) 9 0.37 1.03
Ceferred tax Assets (Net) 10 31.61 29.32
Property, plant and squipment 11 5.31 578
Right of use assets 49 20.37 11.53
Capital work-In-progress 0.01 1.21
Other intangibie assets 12 1.56 0.49
Other non-financial assats 13 458 5.18
Total Assats wadn EIEEEEI
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Dbt securities 14 1,028.42 1,175.43
Borrawings {other tham debt securities) 15 297.28 273.07
Lease Habilily 449 22.70 12,11
Derivative financial instruments 16 1.79 *
Other financial labifities 17 5.81 6.22
Mon-Financial Liabilities
Provisigns 18 22.93 17.76
Other non-financial liabllities 19 12.86 6.72
EQUITY
Share Capital 20 30,45 27.04
Other Equity 21 71625 489.67
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,138.49 2,012.02
Significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming part of these financial 1.85

statements,

In terms of our report attached

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Charfered Accountants

registration number: 101049W/E300004

Amit by
Partner 8"
M. Moo DB4533 |

Sanjay Sharma
Managing Director
DiN: 03337545

Place : Gurugram

Place : Gurugram e
- Date: June 25, 2021
=

Date: June 25, 2021

Mayank Thatte
Chiefl Financial Officer

Place : Pune
Date: June 25, 2021

For and on behalf of the board of Directors

Vikram Jetley
Director
DIN: 06530212

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021

An ;ﬂ?wb‘k}/'

Tripti Fandey
Company Secretary
M. No. - 32760

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021
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Aye Finance Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in Bs. crores uniess otherwise stated

Particulars Mote Mo, Far the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 22 438.58 392.22
Fees and commission inceme 23 8.13 9.26
Net gain on fair value changes 24 4.60 10,25
Total Revenue from operations (I} 451.31 411.73
Other Income {11} 25 4.73 1,20
Total Income (ITI)=({I+IL} A456.04 412.93
Expenses
Finance Costs 26 191.09 140.87
MNet losz on fair value changes 27 5.08 -
Impairment on financial assets 28 55.64 65.58
Employee Benefits Expenses 20 141.40 122.61
Depreciation and amortization Expense 30 .28 7.88
Other expenses 31 30.26 35.00
Total Expenses [IV) 432.76 372.04
Prafit before tax (M)=(III-1V) 23.28 39.99
Tax Expense: {VI}) 6.39 7.54
{1} Current Tax 10.15 23.68
{2} Deferred Tax [2.26) [16.14)
(3) Tax for earlier years (1.50) 000
Profit for the year {VII)={V-V1) 16.80 32.45
Other Comprehensive Loss
{i) Ibems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans 0.13 031
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss {0.03) (0.08)
Other Comprehensive Loss 0.10 0.23
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising
Profit and other comprehensive loss for the year) 16.79 23,22
Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 33 5.58 11.74
Diluted (Rs.) 33 551 11.59
Neminal value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10,00
Significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming part of these financial 3.56

statements.
In terms of our report attached

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the board of Directors

1Cal registration number: 101049W/E300004 —
b
—— o ——=
Amit a Sanjay Sharma Vikram Jetley
Partner Managing Director Director
M, No.: 094533 DIN: 03337545 DIN: 06530212

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021

'l_.-'"'
v (I
Mayank Thatte
Chief Financial Officer

ce : Puna
date: June 25, 2021
.'l' "'I

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021

flr:!"" F*‘J"‘E?"
Tripti Pandey

Company Secretary
M, Mo, - 32760

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021



Aye Finance Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otheérwise stated

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Profit / {Loss) before Tax
Adjustments for;

Depreciation and amortization on preperty, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Depreciation on right of use assets

Unrealised gain on investments in mutwal fund

Unrealisad foreign exchange loss

Gain on sale of investments

Other comprehensive income/ {loss)

Change in the fair value of derivative

Interest on leases liability

(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Expense on employee stock option scheme

Expenses for gratuity

Impairment on financial assets

Loans and advances written off

Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital changes

Adjustments for changes in Working Capital

{Increase)/ Decrease in bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents

(Increase)f Dacrease in loans

{Increase)/ Decrease n other financial assets

{Increase)/ Decrease in deferred tax assets (net)

{Increase}/ Decrease in other non-financial assats

Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in lease liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions

Cash Generated From/ (Used in) Operations

- Taxes (Paid) / Refunds (Net)

Met Cash Generated From/ (Used) in Operating Activities (A)

23.28 39,99
3.68 3.28
5.61 4.60
(1.61) (3.28)
(0.01) 3.19
(4.60) (6.97)
(0.10) (0.23)
5.08 {3.28)
1.81 1.57

: 0.01
3.23 3.30
3.02 2.1%
18.20 46.15
37.44 19.43
95.03 109.95
{110.50) (31.62)
160.42 (764.15)
(13.43) 2.59
(2.29) (16.22)
0.31 1.05
{0.41) 1.78
6,14 2.0
(5.67) (5.70)
2.15 5.67
131.75 (694.25)
{5.75) _ (13.25)
126.00 (707.50)
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Aye Finance Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

All amounts are in Rs. crores unless otherwise stated

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Cash Flow From Investing Activities:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of assets

Purchase of investment at amortised cost

Proceeds from sale of investments

Met Cash Generated From f (Used) in Investing Activities (B)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from debt securities

Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities)

Repayment of debt securities

Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities)

Proceeds from issue of equity shares

Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Financing Activities (C)

Met Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year comprises of
Cash In hand

Balances with Banks in Current Accounts

Others
TOTAL

{3.08) (6.64)
- 0.01
(514.97) (1,171.00)
328.28 1,245.61
{189.77) 67.98
162,18 395,78
320,42 534.59
(313.20) 231.70
(296.20) (491.80)
210.00 -
83.20 670,27
15.42 30.75
172.18 141.43
191.60 172.18
2.99 2.18
67.97 119.53
120.64 50.07
191.60 172.18

Mote: The cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in the IND AS 7 "Cash flow

statement”.

See accompanying notes forming part of these financial statements.
In terms of our report attached

For S.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAEiIrm registration number: 101049W/E300004

Amit Rabra
Partner
M. Na.: 094533

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.

For and on behalf of the board of Directors

Sanjay Sharma
Managing Director
DIN: 03337545

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021

Mayank Thatte
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune
Date: June 25, 2021

«;’\/\

Vikram Jetley
Director
DIN: 06530212

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021

Ao E.Mh;.

Jf
Tripti Pandey
Company Secrebary
M. No, - 32760

Place : Gurugram
Date: June 25, 2021



TEOT 'ST aunf ajeg
weslning : asejd

ODLTE = 'OM ‘W
AJPYRIIDG AUDDuEET
Aapuggd nduy

Ay

TLOE 'ST aung aqeg
aung : 33014

JEMGD [ROURULY YD
apey ) quedegy

TEZOL "ST aung aqeg
wiesBnIng @ ase)d

CIEOESTD "NIO
JOGIa0
Aagzar weagp

TZOT 'ST UL @qeg
welBRIng : a3ejd

SESLEEED (NI
Jopaung Burbeueyy
puueys Anfuesg

/E.Yu#:.u 0 PURGG SYY JO JIRYDG UO PUR 104

2 TTOT ‘ST Dunp :ajeg
& whzalining | poejd

EESER0 S TON "W
". 0 5y ot JBuped
...”..L.". .1. .x._E.__

POOCOES,/MEPOTOT adqunu udnjessibag
B U000y
dT7 STIRBOSSY R 10GIIEE WS Jod

PRALIHNE Joda) N0 J0 Sl u]

Q5-E SIS [BIDURUY 253y o dred Gunuan) saou Bupdusdioooe aes
z Saayod Budunoaae Juedyubis
Eﬁh EE"PE St L PEBSD ET'ST TZ0T Jead Bunsodas Byy jo pud DY) 3B sIueEg
95°90L . = 95907 - [ENdRD BIRYS |0 SNSS] WO AN LR
(o£ o) - TOE ©) - = VOISIAGIT O UCHESIT
ES'E = ES'E - - PEIERIT BoisiA0Ld [EEm PP |
itot ol laT0) - E TEDR Gy 10y SWosU0) SAEuEgeId ey
- (8E'E) - E BE'E sSOUNLIEE DRUIE ES WoJ) o] JSISUE]
62'91 [T - - - JEAR, @) 10 100y
L9 68 TE0T T'w BLESE ST Dzoz Jead Burpodas ayy jo pua ayj e aouseg
LoE'D) - LOE 0 - = UOEAGId JO UCTRES)INT
09°E = [N - - Pajtals UoEAoad |Tunn ey
ez o) LEE D) - - THOHR ) 10y BLIOT0 BAE el |
= (g+'9) - - G SOUIeE PaUIEias Wod) J00 JAJSUEl] |
SP'IE SETE = - - JEBR DU 0] Ja0dd
ST'F5i (zg'r} 0 BLTSY LTS GIOT Jea 21 i 0 pUD SUy) 1 acuejeg
unoIe Y 1au
Buipuejsjno wniwald| Je 3I5F BoII3es Jopun
sBuiuierg paueian | uaido aieyg Saijunsag apasal Alognyjels
w0y snjding pug saAlasay
Kunbg 1o
FLE PR EE0LT St 0E PEE'2E B0'E Jead Buipodal syl jo pus sy I¢ Sduejeg|
: = T#'E [0B G0 R E sk ayy Bupanp pepdes sueys Apnbos uy H-.u_:_nﬁ___
BO'LE PEEEROLE Lt R TR0 Jeak Buigiodas ay) jo BuiuwBag suy) 12 asuejeg)|
junoily HAITYE JO TON JUnouY S3IEYE J0 0N
O0ZO0T "TE W JE 5y TTOT "TE YMEl JE 5y

_..!=mﬂn- aTYS ﬂmw
PO3EIS BSIAMISYI0 SEOUN SDI013 Y U} I SJURCLWE Y

TL0E 'TE YUl Papus Je3h 343 104 AUNDE U Sabuey) Jo JUSUSEIS

PRGIUIT aYRALIg 2OURULY DAY

47



Aye Finance Private Limited
KNotes forming part of the inancial statements
All amounts are in Rs. crores unless othe rwise stated

1. General information

Aye Finance Private Limited ("AFPL" or "the Company”} was incorporated to carry on the business of a finance company
and to provide finance (whether short or fong term loan or working capital finance, development finance, factoring,
leasing, guarantees or any other debt related funding) to micro, small and medium scale enterprises and to individuals.
On July 18, 2014, the Company received a certificate of registration from the Reserve Bank of India vide registration no.
B-14.03323 under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to carry on the business of a Nen-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC) without acceptance of public deposits. The Company is currently a systemically important non
deposit taking Non Banking Finance Company {ND-NBFC) as defined under Section 45 - [& of the Reserve Bank OF India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, all provisions of the Reserve Bank of Indis Act, 1934 and all directions, guidelines or instructions
of the Reserve Bank of India that have been issued from time to time and are in force and as applicable to a Non deposit
taking Mon-Banking Financial Company are applicable to the Company. The registered office of the Company Is situated in
Db,

The Company has issued debentures on a private placement basis and the said securities are listed with Bombay Stock
Exchange {BSE) on Debt market segment.

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

2.1 Statement of Compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 of
Cormpanies Act, 2013, (the 'Act’), other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance notesfannouncements
issued by the Institute of Charered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where comphiance with other
statutory promulgations require a different treatment. Any directions issued by the RBI or other regulators are
implemented as and when they become applicable.

2.2 Basis of Preparation:

The financlal statements have been prepared on & going concern Basis the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,

2,3 Presentation of financial statements:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act and the Master Direction - Non-
Banking Financial Company = Systemically Important Non-Depesit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2020 ("the NBFC Master Directions”) issued by RBI. The financial staternents have been prepared on a
going concern basis.,

The Company uses accrual basis of accounting except in case of significant uncertainties, The financial statements are
presented in Indlan Rupess (INR) and all values are munded to the crores, except when gtherwise indicated,

The regulatory disclosures as required by RBI Master Directions to be included as & pert of the Notes to Accounts are also
prepared as per the Ind AS financial staterments.

The Company presents It balance sheet in order of Houidity. Financlal assets and financial labilities ane generally
reported gross In the balance sheet, They are only offset and reperted net when, In addition to having an wnconditional
legally enfarceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also
intend bo setthe on a net basis in all of the following clrcumstances:

i, The normal course of business

li. The event of default

lii. The event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Group and/or its counterparties

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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MNotes forming part of the financial statements
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Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be relizbly measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable as reduced for estimated customer credits and other similar allowances,

Inberest InCome
EIR Method

Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded wsing the effective interest rate method for all financial nstruments
measured at amortised cost and financial instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
{'FVOCI) and fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the finandial instrument or, when appropriate, & shorter period, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss at initial
recognition.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) ks calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition, fees and costs that sre an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of
return that represents the best estimate of 8 constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial instrument.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carmying amount of non-credit impalred financial assets
(l.e, at the amartised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-
impaired financial assets the interest income is recorded as and when realised.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other tham credit risk, the
adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset In the balance sheet with
an Iincrease or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest income in the
statement of profit and loss.

Met gain or fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of the financial assets classified as fair value threugh the profit or loss, held by
the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain/loss in the statement of profit and loss,

Dther gperational revenue:

Other operational révenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and Is recognised when

the nght to réceive the income is established as per the terms of the contract. This Includes cheque bouncing charges,
late payment charges and prepayment charges etc. which are recorded as and when realised.
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2.5 Leases:

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 118
The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily cansist of [eases for its various office spaces. The Company assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to controd the wse of an identified asset for a period of time In exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the wse of an Identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset (i} the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through
the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (*ROU") and a correspanding
lease liability for 30 lease arrangements in which it is a lessee. The company has not exercised the exemption to exclude
short term leases or low value leases,

Certain lease arrangements includes the oplions to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities includes these options when It is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprizes the initial amount of the lease liakility adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
teem and useful Hfe of the underlying asset. Right of use assels are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
ehanges in circumstances Indicate that thelr carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGUY to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability s initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments, The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrewing rates pertaining to the company. Lease liabilities are remessyred with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination
option.

Lease lability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Shest and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash fiows,
2.6 Foreign currency transactions:

The functional currency and presentation curréncy of the company is Indian Rupee.

Initial recoanition

Transactions denominated In foreign currencies are accounted at the exchange rates prevalling on the date of the
transaction,

Monetary items denominated in forelgn currencies at the year-end are restated at the exchange rates prevalling on the
date of the Balance Sheet. Non-monetary Items denominated in foreign currencies which are carried at historical cost are
reported using exchange rate on the date of transaction,

Ireatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement [ restatement of monetary assets and liabliities of the Company are
recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
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Employee benefits:

Employes benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensabed absences.
Short term emploves benefits:

Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as shart term employes
benefits and are expensed in the peried in which the employee renders the related service. Liabilities recognised in

respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchanae for the refabed service.

Post- emplovment benefits:
DRefined contribution plan
The Company's contribution to Employee Provident Fund, Employes State Insurance Scheme and Labour Welfare Fund

under the relevant Acts are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amaunt
of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit Plan

Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratulty, a defined bencfit plan is accounted for on
the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
the plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of
employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. The present value of such obligation ks determined by the projected wnit credit method
and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the balance sheet date through which the shligations
are to be settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation is
reflected immedistely in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period
im which they oocur,

Long-term emploves benefits
Compensated absences with respect to leave encashment benefits payable to employees of the Company while in service,
on retirerment, death while in service or on termination of employment with respect to accumulated leaves outstanding at

the year end are accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. The defined benafit
obligation is calculated annually by an actuary using the projected wnit credit method.

i Facis

Termination benefits such as compensation under employes separation schemes are recognised as expense when the
Company ‘s offer of the termination benefit is accepted or when the Company recognises the related restructuring costs
whichever is earlier.

Taxation:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently pavable and deferred tax,
Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported
in the statement of profit and loss because of ibems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and is measured In accordance with Income tax Act,
1961, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and other applicable tax laws.

Current tax assets and liabllities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amaounts,
and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
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{ii} Deferred Tax

Dreferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax labilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available agalnst which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and Habilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxabie profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
limbility Is settied or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting pericd.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expecis, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or setthe the carmying amount of Its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(iii} Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in staterment of profit or less, except when they relate to iems that are
reécognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in ather comprehensive income or directly In equity respectively,

2.9 Property, plant and equipment:

(I} Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, The
initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset into the lgcation and condition necessary for it to be capable of aperating in the manner intended by management,
the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligatien, if any, and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use, finance costs, Cost includes import duties and any non-refundable taxes on such
purchase, after deducting rebates and trade discounts and is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental
expenses. All cost are capitalized which are directly attributable to bringing assets to the condition and location essential
for it to operate in a manner as intended by the management. In respect of assets due for capitalization, where final
bills/claims are to be received/passed, the capitalisation is based on the engineering estimates. Final adjustments, for
costs and depreciation are made retrospectively in the year of ascemtainment of actual cost and finalisation of claim.

Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits /
functioning capability from / of such assets

Capital work in progress inciudes the cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use
and the cost of assets not put to use before the Balance Sheet date.

kit
¥ e

T
ST A

G |
s

b
.

T

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.



2.9

(i)

(i)

2,10

211

Aye Finance Private Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts are in Rs. crores unless athersise stated

Property, plant and eguipment (con't)

o ; _—

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less thelr estimated residual values ever their
estimated useful lives using the writben down value method, and s generally recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

The Company follows estimated useful lives which are given under Part C of the Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013,

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of lease,

Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets is
acquiredfinstalled. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and eguipment is provided for upto the date of
sale deduction and discardment as the case may be.

The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis, In respect of assets whose useful lives has been revised,
the unamartized depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful lives of the assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising an the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets:
R ™ I

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accurmulated amortization and
accumulated Impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basls over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated wseful life and amgrtization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impalrment losses,

Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits /
functioning capability from / of such assets,

0 ition of | i

An intangible asset s derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal,
Gains or fosses arising from derecognition of an intangible assct, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset; are recognized in profit or loss when the asset s derecognized.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Estimated useful lives of the intanaible ssset for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Computer software 3 years

Impairment of non financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tanglble and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. IF any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment lass (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belgngs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows hawve not been adjusted.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amaount, such deficit
is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash generating unit} is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An assessment is made annually as to see if there are any indications that impairment losses recognized earlier may no
longer exist or may have come down. The Impalrment loss Is reversed, if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the previous impairment loss was recognized. IF it is so, the carmying
amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years, After a reversal, the
depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual value,
on & systematic basis over its remaining wseful life. Reversals of Impairment 1065 are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

2.12 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

{1l Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the cbligation.

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settie the present obligation and when the effect of time value of
maney is material, the carmrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows. Reimbursement
expected in respect of eéxpenditure requiréd to settle a provision |s recognised only when it is virtually certain that the
reimbursement will be received,

(i) Contingent liabilities

Contingent lizbilities are disclosed when there 15 3 possible obligation arising from past events, the existernce of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or nen- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
contrel of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made,

(i) Contingent aseets

Centingent assets are net recegnized in the financial statements, however they are disclosed when an inflaw of econamic
benefits is probabie.

2.13 Segment reporting:

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision making body In the Company to make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation.
The reporting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the purpose of the performance
assessment and resource allocation to the segments. Segment socounting policies are in line with the accounting policies
of the Company.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liguid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, that are readily conwvertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subiect to an insionificant risk of chanoes in value.
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Share-based payment arrangements:

The stock options granted to employees pursuant to the Company’s Stock Options Schemes, are measured at the fair
value of the options at the grant date in accordance with IND AS 102, Share-based payments. The fair value of the
options I5 treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting period on a straight-line
bagls. The amount recognised as expense in each year is arrived at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a
grant lapses after the vesting period, the cumulative discount recognised as expense in respect of such grant is
transferred to the general reserve within equity.

The company has constituted an Employee Stock Option Plan 2016. The Plan provides for grant of options to employecs
of the Company to acquire equity shares of the Company that vest in a graded manner and that are to be exercised
within a specified period.

The company has constituted an Employee Stock Option Plan 2020. The company has transferred all the ungranted
options under Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 to Employes Stock Option Plan 2030 while options granted under the
Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 continue to be govermed by the conditions of Employes Steck Option Plan 2016, Bath
pians provide for grant of options to employees of the Company to acquire equity shares of the Company that vest In a
graded manner and that are to be exercised within a specified period,

Input tax credit:

Goods and Service tax input credit i5 accounted for in the books in the period in which the underying service received is
accounted and when there is no uncertainty In availing / utilizing the credits.

Financial instrumenis:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial labilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or Issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial labilitles at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair valuve of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss,

Einancial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized Initially at fair value and transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset are adjusted to the fair value gn inktial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of Subsequent measurement, the Company classifies financial assets in following categories:

Financlal assets at amortized cost
Fimancial assets at fair value threugh other comprehensive incorme [FYTOCT)
Fimancial assets at fair value through profit or loss {FVTEL)

The asset is held within a busiress model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.
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fa} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by bath collecting contractud! cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

(b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
{SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FYTOC! as described above are measured at FYTPL,
aubseguent measurement of financial assels

Financial assets at amortiséd cost are subseguently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The
amaortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are

recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain and loss on derecognition s recognised in Statement of profit and
loss.

Financial investment at FYOCT are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under effective interest method,
forelgn exchange gains and fosses and impairment are recognised In Statement of profit and loss, Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCL. On derecegnition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Statement of
profit and loss.

Fimancial asscts at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Met gains and losses, including any inberest or
dividend income, are recognisad in Statement of profit and loss.

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Profit and loss, except for those
equity investments for which the company has elected to present the changes in fair value through OCI.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and dees not retain control of the financial asset,

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in
its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without Imposing additional
restrictions on the transfer. When the Company has neither transferred mor retained substantiafly all the risks and
rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continuees to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company’s centinuing invoelvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated lability. The Eransferred
asset and the assoclated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

{B) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial labilities are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all Habilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective Interest method except
for derivatives, financial liabilities designated for measurement at FVTPL which are measured at fair value.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A fimancial fiabilities is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the

ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the statement of orofit and loss,
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Offsetting of financial instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when there 5 8 current
legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended to either settle on net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company doesn't reclassify its financial assets and liabilities subsequent to their initial recognition.
Impairment of financial instruments:

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model! for measurement and recognition
of impairment foss for financial assets other than these measured through profit and loss (FYTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

<The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

-Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all pessible default events over the life of the
financial instrument

Both LTECLS (Lifetime expected Credit losses) and 12 months ECLs are calcutated on collective basis,

Based on the above, the Company categorises its leans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1

When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allswance based on 12 months ECL. Stage 1 loans includes
those koans where there is no significant increase in credit risk observed and also includes Facilities where the credit risk
has been improved and the loan has been reclassified from stage 2 or stage 3.

Stage 2

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit nisk since origination, the Campany records an allowance for the
life time ECL, Stage 2 loans also includes faciliies where the credit risk has Improved and the loan has been reclassified
from stage 3 and facilities where the credit risk has been increased due to restructuring and loan has been reclassified
from stage 1.

Stage 3

Loans considered credit impaired are the loans which are past due for mare than 90 days. The Company records an
allowance for life time ECL,

Definition of Default

The Company considers a financlal Instrument as defaulted and considered it as Stage 3 (eredit-impaired) for ECL
calculations in all cases, when the borrower becomes more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments,

Significant increase in credit risk

The Company continuously monitors all assets subject te ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio
of instruments is subject to 12MECL or LTECL, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. The Company considers an éxposure to have significantly increased in credit risk whes
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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(2)  cCaleulation of ECLs
The mechanics of ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD: Probability of Default ("PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only
happen at a certain time over the assessed period, If the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the
portfolio.

EAD: Exposure at Default ("EAD") is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected
changes in the exposure after the reporting date.

LGD: Loss Given Default ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss ansing in the case whene a default cocurs at a given time. It is
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Company has calculated PD, EAD and LGD to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of loans. At every reporting
date, the above calculated PDs, EAD and LGRS are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the company analyses if there is any refationship between key
economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflaticn etc. with the
estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates
by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded In the
methodology to reflect such macro-ecomomic brends reasonably,

(b}  The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:
Stage 1
The 12 manths ECL ts calcuwlated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company cabculates the 12

months ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring In the 12 months following the reporting date.
These expected 12-months default probabilities are applied to the EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2

When a lpan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since crigination, the Company records an allowance for the
LTECLs. The mechanics are simifar to those explained abowe, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the
Imstrument.

Stage 3

For loans considered credit-impalred, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The
method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

(i)  Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
= for financial assets measured at amortised cost: a5 a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets:
« for debt instruments measurad at FVTOCT: no loss allowance is recogaised in Balance Sheet as the carrying amount is
at fair value.,

(v}  Write offs

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial
asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off,
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written
off. Recoveries resulting from the Company's enforcement activities will result in impairment gains,
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Statement of cash flows:

Statement of cash flows 15 prepared segregating the cash flows inte aperating, Investing and financing activities. Cash
flow from operating activities is reported using indirect methed adjusting the net profit for the effects of:!

changes during the period in operating receivables &nd payables transactions of a non-cash nature;
non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses; and
all ather items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash fows

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude iterms which are not
available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet. For the purpese of the statement of cash flaws, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share ('EP5°) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss {excluding OCI) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are caloulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares,
by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
pobential equity shares. Polential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordingry eperations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed o be
cenverted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined independently for each period presented.

Borrowing Cost:
Borrowing cost includes interest expense calculated using the EIR method.

Insurance Claims:

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/expected to be admitted and to the extent that the
amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it Is reasonable to expect uitimate collection.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments, primarily forelgn exchange forward contracts, currency swaps
and [nterest rate swaps, to manage its borrowing exposure to foreign exchange and Interest rate risks. Derivatives
embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the hest contracts are not measured at FVTPL. Derivatives are initially
recognised at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to thelr fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain/fioss is recognised In Statement of profit and loss,
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2.24  Fair Value measurement

Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Company ‘s accounting policies require, measurement of certain financial / non-financial assets and liabilities at fair
values (either on a recurring or nen-reécurring basis). Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at amortized
cost ane reguired to be disclosed in the said financial statements.,

The Company is required to classify the falr valuation method of the financial / non-financial assets and liabilities, either
measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy which reflects the
significance of Inputs wsed in the measurement).

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data s available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
urobservable inputs.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy described as follows:

= Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active
markets for identical assets or Habilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date, The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liguidity of the
identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

« Level 2 financial instruments - Those whera the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from
directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

« Level 3 financial Instruments = include one or more wnobservable input where there is little market activity for the
asset/liability at the measurement dabe that is significant to the measurement as a whole,

2.25 Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definitian, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policy. This note
provides an overview of the areas that invalved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more
likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originzlly
assessed. Detalled information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for cach affected line item in the financial statements.

The following are significant management estimation/uncertainty and judgement in applying the accounting policies of the
Company that have the most significant effect on the financial statements;

Defined benefit obligation: Management estimates of these obligation s based on a number of critical underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation n these assumptions may significantly Impact the defined benefit obligation amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Business model assessment : Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of business
madel and the solely payments of principal and Interest ("SPPI"} test. The Company determines the business model at a
level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective, This
assessment includes judgement refiecting all relevant evidence incduding how the performance of the assets is evaluated
and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and
how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held, Monitoring Is part of the Company's continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate
and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the
classification of those assets.
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Fair value of financial instruments : The fair value of financlal Instruments is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or pakd to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageows) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (e, an exit price} regardiess of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technlgue, When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balence sheet cannet be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation
techniques that Include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method : The Company recegnizes interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loans given | taken. This
estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the
imstruments, as well a5 expected changes to other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

Recognition of deferred tax assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probabliity of the Company ‘s future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized,

Property, plant and equipment: Measurement of useful life and residual values of praperty, plant and equipment and
useful life of intangible assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of Impairment of
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverabie
amount of the assats,

Contingent liabilities - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent lizbilities. However the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected
life, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances.

The Company’s expected credit loss ("ECL") caleulations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying
assumbtions recarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.

These estimates and judgements are based on histarical experience and ather factors, including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasanable under the circumstances,
Management believes that the estimates used In preparation of the standalone financial statements are prudent and
reasonable.
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3 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars A &t Ax at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Cadh on hand 24949 2.8
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 67.97 119.93
= Fixed deposits with arlginal materiy of less than 3 months 120,64 54.0

Total —d2LE0 PR % 1
Hobes :

a.  Cash in hand includes balance in prepaid cands obtained by Company for i routing exponses from the banks,
b, Balances with banks im current accounts do not earm any interest, Short-term deposits are made far varying periods of between one day and thres
menths, depending upan the immediate cagh reguirements of the Company, and Bas Intenest al tha respictive thort -term deposit rates,

4 Bank balsndes other than Cash and cash equivalents

Fleed depasit with arignsl maturity for more than 3 moenths 114,53 E
Balanoes in eanmarked sooounts

= Badangs hiold 5 dedurity against borrowings. 151.13 B.50
- Badance kel a5 seturity sgainst securtisation 41,51 48,18

o Fiwed depost and balances i earmarked scoounts eam inerest ot fixed rabes,
5 Derivativa finencisl instruments

Carried at fair valus
Cross Currency Swap rate contract not designated in hedge actounting refations kip

Ratignal value of derivative financial instrument ks Rs. 162,77 crores { March 31, 2020 Bs. 34,50 crones ]

Tetal — -5 v
Mates @

6  Loans
Loans measured at amortised cost

Bilis purchased and bills discounbed 0.16 1.7
Revolving working cagital 1.35 1.4%
Term loans 1,586.07 1,783.86
Stalf boan 271 1.57
Total - Gross s Le9.29 - 1L7BRAS
Lss: Irnpalrment loss allowanoe #5351 71,33
Total - Not L500.76 1,716,832
(i} As per NBFC Directions

(i} Others 1,590.29 1,788,15
{ii} To Related Parties =
Total (A) Gross Lsa0.29 T igmmas
Less: Impainmaent loss allowance &G 53 7133
Total (&) Net L500.76 L7168
Basad on security

{1} Secuned 233,72 5
{i)Unsecured 1. 768,15
Total (B)-Gross L.550.29 1,768,115
Less: Impairment loss afewancs E3.53 7111
Total {B)-Mat L.500.76 1716 82
Based on ragion

[C) (1) Loans in India

[ijPubhe Sectar = =
(i} Dithers {590,709 178815
Taotal {C) (I) - Gross L590. 39 1.788.15
Less: Impadiment loss allowance 89.51

Tetal (C) (1] - Net 1.500.76 171652
{C} (I} Loans sutside India - .
Less: Dmpairment loss sliowancn &

Tetal (C] (1] - ot _—— —_—
Tetal (C) (1) and {C) (11} 1,500, 76 1.716.82

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.



Aye Finance Private Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts ara in RS, erones wnless otherwise stated

7 Investments

Particulmrs As at As ot

March 31, 2021 March 31, Z020
Investmonts measured at fair value through Profit or loss
Hutual funds 1%).85 =
Hutual Funds held &5 security in respect of borrowings g.29 5.B85
Investments carried at Fair value through Profit or loss 197.14 5.B5
Investment in subsidiary at amortised cost {unquoted)

248,599 equity shares of INR 10 in Foundation for advancoment of Micro enterprises 0.25 0.25
Corporate Bonds held a8 security in respect of bormowings .78 0.8
Investments measured at amortised cost 1.03 1.03
Total = Gross (A} __IM ——Eﬂ
(i} Investments outside India
(i) Investments in [ndia 19817 5,88
Less: Allowance far Tempairment ks (C) = .
Tatal - Net D= (A)-[C) 198,17 S

8  other financial assets
Rieivabbe froem Insurance cormpany 064 i
Security Deposits 1.83 1.40
Recowarable from Gosernment on Account of Ex-Grafia® 13.35 -
Daher receivables .82 0. 24
Total — —E

*Represents dams recoverable under the scheme of Hinistry of Finance, Department of Financal Services (DFS] vide letter Rel: FNo.2/12/2020-
BOA dated October 23, 030 relating to the Scheme of grant of px-gratia payment of difference betwien compouns interest and simple interest

for six months (1.3.2020 bo 31.8.2020).

¥ Qurrent Tax assals [ Nat)
Curreat e assets [nel

10 peferred Tax assets [MNet)
Deeferred tax Bideds [net)

Total

Totad

037

31,61

103

25.32
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13

14

15

Other Mon Financial Assots

As at AS Bl
Riiiculsm March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
TOE Recovoranle 032 [N 1]
Goods and service tax recesvable 1.B5 275
Capital advance 0.02 005
CXPENEOS 1.B5 165
Advanoe 1o Suppliess b.E9 0.30
Employess Advances B.15 0.33
Total —F JRN—
Dabl Secusitios
Debt Securitics measured at Amartised Cost
Redoemable Mon-Convertible Debentures
- Secured BE9.95 7o0.42
= nsecured 5549 WH
Liabdies in respoect of securitised transadticns B2.58 290.03
Total 1,028.42 1,179.43
Debi sacurities in India 1,028.42 117943
Dbt saturitiod outdide India = E
Total — 102833 — e
Mot
Refer Hote 14 (i} for the repayment details along with rate of interest and security details
Borrawings (Other than Dobt Securities)
Borrowings measurad at Amortises Cost
Sacurad
Term lpans
() Frown banks 95.38 103,62
(W} From otiver Ninartial Asfutians 23.00 117.00
(il } external cormirencisl bonrowings 167,53 3E.04
Loans repayable on demand®
[i} from banks 11,537 11.61
(i} fogm other finangial inptfuliong - .80
Other loans (cash eradit and evardraf fram banks)- Total — B, ——h AL
Borrowings In India 129.75 23503
Borrowings cutside Ind 167.53 1804

Nobes

* Secured by hypothecation of Loan Reehables (current and fulisne) / crent assetsl cash and cash equivaisnts of the Company,

Refer Note 15 (i) for the repayment detalis along with rate of intenest and security cetails
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14. Debt Securities (eon't)

{1} Detalls of terms of repaymant for the ot Bang-18am borrowings and Sécurity pronided i nedpect of the secured other long-lerm bomowsngs

s at March 31, 2021

Ay at March 35, 2020

Waloe of Rs. 10,000

reCERAbIEs 1o Uhe extenl of 1104 of (ke
principal lgan amount

Dt ol
Particular Mature of Security Rate af inlerant Ryt Ticiaa E = - o
—— e il |Eetersive first charge by way of
rnnﬂu;.umun?:g::zm Debentures - |MPCEhEcKUGn of Compdmy's doecfic 13.698% 18- Hay-32 #7.00 700 :
harving o Face Value of Rs. 10,00,000 IRRAECINS 1 TR OF LA o e ' ‘ ) '
J principal foen amount
|z i R Unksted Rod Ea lanumfmmlru:wwrfd
Transferabls on-Converiible Debentures | 1Pooecatian of Company's spechic 13,530% 17-3un-32 700 700 .
vy 5. Pacs Wikcs o k. 30,00,000 recivahies 16 the extent of 170% of the
; princigal lan amaued
|secured fated Lnksted kedeamabls ELEN A1) ERarol by vy, of
Transferable Non-Converible Debntres | Yot iocis o o COMPAIVESPRARE g £age; Mz 26,00 2600
having & Face Vades of Rs. 10,00,000 2
rrssinal loan amount
Secured Rated Unbited Redpamable T s Ty OF
Transfarable Non-Convertible Debentures (700 coober OF ComPanvs spedfic, - [13-4723% & 29-hug-23 400 4400 3
having a Face Viahue of Rs. 10,00,000 v itriaid h
perircigad lnan amount
|
Sevured Rated Unisted Reseemabie Bctirien. Bk it by, iy of
[Transiaratie NoeConvertibie Debentures | Torreoalon of Company’s soechic 13 100% 30-0d-20 : 32.80 .
having & Face Value of Re. 10,00,000 HMM*NM of 1004 of the
Lo princigal kadn ansant
Exchasive fersl charge by way of
Secured Ealed Isted Redesmabie T HHH!DUI
Nm{mumhh-b:fmntwumru Face Terposhscation of Company's spedfic 11 S35 7B-Mas-17 30,00 30,00
alue of s, 20,00,000 MRCHVRTAS [ v wne o100 oF i ' s ]
N principal foen smount
FExchamive firit charga by wiy of
Sprured Rated Unkisted Redeemabie rtvecation of Chmhonss sl
Tramfranie Non:Comvarmibie Dabpniands rbcahiabies o the extent of 100% of the 12.100% 24-Jul-24 68,00 G800
having @ Face ¥alue of Rs. §,00,000 5
¥ principal loan amowt
Seoured Rated Inbed Redeematia Iwyiw’:mm'”""" :":1 ‘:mg:ﬂ:mt
mﬂm i B e [ e e et f 1100 e [12534% 21-Oct-74 72.00 7200 3
precipal loan smurd
Cooured Rated Isbed Redeemnable Trangforablel Coclusive first charge by way of
Mom-Comartible Debesiunes Rawing & Face  |[Fypolthegation of Company's specfe 12.250% T9-Hay-20 - 2,61
Wadue of Ro. 10,000,000 reoEivabies to Che extent of 1230% of U
prncipal loan smount and investment in 18- Aipg-20 - .69 .
cofporate bonds wple |MR 80 lakhs,
29 W= 210 - m .
fsecured Rated tstec Redvemabin Transteratiel "oUe B! CRSTT BY WY S
Non-Conwertiole Debentures hawing & Face s Frps 13, 500% e D= 35 i W) T0.00 5
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14, Dobl Segurition [¢on't)

Undedured Faled s Redasimabis
Transferdt Non-Convertidie Debentores Mo Seounty 12.180% IE-Feb-21 E. = - 2000
hawving a Face Value of Bs. 1
Unsecured Rated sted Redeamatie 11!'1225;'5‘:6:*“’
Transferabie Non-Converlibhe Debenetes Ing Spariy 3 2 1258, fee 6 Feb-21 ' . . 25,00
having & Fate value of Rs. 500,000 x; i
Unsecured Rated inted Redeamabls
Transferabie Won-Convertiy Debonues Mo Senanty 12.143% O-Mar-24 20,00 E 20.06
hawving @ Face WValue of Rs. 10
[secured Rated isted Redeematie Transferabiel 5 S T O
non-Convenitle Debentures having a Face " 13.000% 2 hari-21 B.TS - [ Brpd
Value of Re. 10,000 receiva kit 1o the extert of 110% of the
; principal kean amaognt
L] z 2

Serior Raled Un-Liited Radsssiudbd De- Theh Chaidg ol vk Chaigied fetisables Ayg- = & 10.67 -
rateriplned Nes-Coevenibly Debentures shall be at all s 1u of the value - &1 s i .
isued om private placement basis of putstanding CO7-Fieb-22 5.33 . 5,33 -
100,000/ each b5 Aug-22 533 . 533 .
1
Sévurg RFed Lisied Redeemabie De- The Charge over ihe charged receivables

iped MorrComvertible Debent sl be at Bl Uit 1% of Uhe valus
::I::.m private plaserenl b#lr!-dlm wmm:r-r 12.500% M- 22 4140 i 41,40 .
g, 50, 00,000/ each
1
Secured, Rated, Listed, Ratearmalie
trarsierable Bon-Converiible Debentures The Chaege over the changed receivables
Garies | Bsued on privabe placement Basis off (4580 be ot Bl Uil 1. 1x oF the vikos 12.900%: Fa-He-21 107,03 = 107.00 &
Res. 10,00, 000/ - each tButstanding
fally gl wifs
1
Servcs, Sedured, Un-Rated, Ur-Listed, Tha Chaspe orver the charged recerabies 10, 700% 25-Det-21 .25 - N5 -
Reéspmmalie transferable Mon-Convertible shall be at sl Lmes 1x of the value
Cebentures msued on privite Basis harsg
of R.10,00,0004- each 35-0ct-23 9175 . 9375 .
Muthy puaidd U
|5erice, Secured, Rated, Un-Listed,
Redeemable transfera e Mon-Convermible | Thet CRudirger &l thie charged mecehabies §7.64% and
Crebdniures Hsued on peivabe placement Basis {shall be at all bnes 1 of the value u'm 31-Har-23 Ep.00 - 58,00 -

of R, 10,00,000/- sach
fuily P g

|Butstanding
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14, Deht Securities [can't)

Senkar, Secwed, Raled, Lsted, Redesmable
trarfierabie Non-Cormestible Debentures
issusd on privite plecement besls of

R 10, 00,0004 - each

Ty pakd ug.

13, 500

i

syppothecation of book debtsfrec i
mnkained ot ol mes
ab 110% of agoreqeie princinad 3

Seourity creafion snd
Perfection reguired 88 per lws and
riguliliang

2 ) 2 ) o o o e

: s
‘Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Reseemable  [Hypolhecation of book deblafrecerables
transfarable Non-Converlibie Debeniures maminingd &1 a8 timas AL L2%5% of aggeegate
snuspd on private placerment bass of principal cutstamding. Secuniy creation and  |100100% L E:Fgh=22 .00 . a
R 10, 00,000/~ esch parfection requingd as per limws aod
Fuily paid up. e ulatiens,
Senwr, Secured, Bated, LSted, Redadmably  [HypolPeiatn of bock arbls/mdevables
nrafsfErphle Non-Canven ibie Deleaiures amaintaesed 32 3l times st 130 Emes of
izsued on private placement basis of Lagaregete princpal culstanding. Security LE000% 15-Feb-22 10,00 - . -
Ra. 10,00,000/- esch IF““I:!F" Brd perfection reguired 38 per lews
fully paid wp. band egislations.
Spnior, Secuned, Rabed, Listed, Redesmable  |[Hypothecation of loed geposits creabed gut 1107004 F RN B 2
& Mon-Cix Debentures of the proceeds of the istue of the PCD by
issuad on private placersent basi of veiy of Moaking change and hypothesation of
Eg. 1,000/« each ioars (andlor other assats) in the form of a
tully paid up. fwed charge, wh ithee commutad ']
o all aesets suibjers 1o the: Flosting
Crasge and (Be [nital nmn?:;r shall ba,
a1 L¥ma, not less than 1 e
mwmqu amounts urdes the BED, A3y 24 R " "

*The amounts menticned Above repretenty only prncipal cutstanding on all types of borrowings

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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Al amounts are in Rs. crores unless othorwise stated

15 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) {con't)

(i} Details of terms of repayment for the other long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the secured other [eng-Lerm Dofrawings:

l A3 at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rate af Bate aof e LR Rt
Particul. ] of
e atusre of Security InbEsast Repayiment Secired Unsecured Secured Unsecured
Hirduia Leyland First and exthusive charges over the
Fimance Lud-PLT lean 2| poartholia of the Company upla the 10.4 5% 1-May-20 . - 0.45 .
extent of 110% of the outstanding
amourit &t sy point of time. 1=Jun-20 - Ak
30-Jun-20 : 86
1-Aug- S0 = - 0.7 =
L-Sop-dd * 0.7 =
29520 0.4 -
-Hev-20 - X! :
“Dec-20 0.4 -
Manappuram Finance |Exclusive fiest charge by way of
Led Loan 2 hypothecation of Company's specifc | 15-00% | 30-Apr-20 * [ .
regeivahles o the extent of 110% of
A1-May-20 - .63 =
b principsl an amount 30-Jyn-70) = [ =
31 -Juil-30 - ] 3
31 -Aug-20 - 1,65 -
30-Sep-20 - LES =
13-0ut-20 12.85 :
Dewn Howsing Exchusive first charge by way of
Finance Limited hypathecation of Company’s specific 11.80% 15-My-20 z - 2.5 °
recefvables ko the extent of 110% of -lun- 20 - .25 -
the principal loan armowat g 20 = E x
Aug-70 : = s :
1 5-How-210 - - 25 =
15-Feb-21 . - 1.25 =
13- o 1.25 1.24 -
-Asig- 1,25 - 1.5 -
5-How-2 125 1.75 .
5-Fab-22 1,24 ' 1,74 -
Magma Fintorp Lid  |Exclusive first change by way of 10, F3% 39-Hay-2 . P D41 =
hypothecation of Company's specific 25-Run-i = = 0,45 -
receivabiles to the extent of 100% of 29-hul- 20 - 0.46 E
e principal loan amount 25 Ausg-20 F 086 7
28-Sep-20 - s 0,46 =
29-0ct-20 = 7,42 =
Mahingera & Mahingra |Exclusive hypothecation charge ovesr
Financial Services Pt [recesvables/Toan assets/hook Gebis with
Lig a cover of 1,05« times of the P e . . i i
putstanding pricigal ab any point of time e a4
‘during currency of the facility.
lf@k-?ﬂ - 0,47 .
Zrate Bank of Incha . [Hypethecation Assignment of futiure
Loan boan recefvables created out of Bank's
finamce value at 133.33% of the lsan  |11.15% 1-Apr-20 - 0.91 r
amourt or loan outstanding,
1-May-20 - . T x
1-Juns-20 : . Y -
~Jul-20 = g X =
Al F . - [N ]
[Ty . - .51 .
=0t-20 - . i :
-Neav-20 , . .8
1-Jan~21 " .. 2
-Feb-21 : bt e
=Mar-31 - [ X .
-Apra21 1.1% 115 :
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[rabkisan Finance First and exchusive charges ower the
lirnited partfoli of the Campany upto the 12.25%  {1-Ape-20 : 2 Loty I
extent of 110% of the cutstanding 13030 - - W -
arncint &t amy poant of time.
1-0ct-20 . - 1.2% -
i-dan-gt - 2 195 -
1-Apr-21 1.5 . L -
1-Jui-21 1.25 = ik =
1=Chct-21 125 - 25 -
ALl Semall Finance First and ¢xclusive charges over the i = : "
[eank Loan 1 partfalic of the Company Lpts the 1.39%  |S-Apr20 2
eatent of 110% of the cutstanding
amcunt at any paint of time. S dupi=20 . - .63 -
G-2ud- 20 - 25 -
FeAug- 10 - . T -
5-Sep- 2 - - 53 -
“Oict-20 2 - 53 -
Mo 20 = = [ =
Flrer- 20 g [ h
AL Serall Finanos First and exclusive charges over the 3 i
leani koan 2 portiolio of the Company Lpts tha LL25%  |3-Apr-20 1.25
satent of 110% of the cutstanding
amecunt at amy point of time, 3o Jun-30 = - 175 "
Tl 20 B - .50 -
3-Aug-F0 E = 1.2 -
3-Sep-70 - : 2 =
3-Dct-20 - : 28 -
- How -2 = - .25 =
~DHeC- é - - 75 -
F-Jan-21 ] 1.25 -
I-Teb-21 = . LI5 -
Hera Fincorp Pyt Lt [First and extiusive charges over the 7 c
portiolio of e Cormpary upls the 13.00%  |3-Ape-20 0.71
Eatent of 110% of the autstancing 3-May-20 D.72 =
amount at amy poind of time.
F-Jun-20 - 0,73 =
3oyl 20 . - 0.74 -
3-Aug-20 = = 78 -
I-5ep-20 = 0,75 -
13620 = : 0.76 .
“Nov- - - 0.77 =
3-Dec70 . - 0.78 -
FJan-21 x . 0.7% =
3-Feb-21 = .79 -
Caspian Impac IFirst and exclusive charges over the
Irvestments Put Lbd  |portialio of the Compary uplo the 13.50% 15-Apr-H - 1.25 -
extent of 110% of the gutstanding e L
amount at any point of tme. -Jul- . % s
bl 15-0e8-20 B FE :
20-Det-20 = 6.25 -
First and exclusive charges over the  [10,90% 114~ = A5
portfalic of the Company wpto the 14 -May- 400 ‘ La%
extent of 110% of the outctanding 14-Jun-20 KX
aiount at any peint of time. 14-]-_{]-20 - A5
F 1”1-:"] - 45
4 .im-au - 045
e - X
A-Mp -2 4
14-Diec-20 = i 45
14 -a_n-?l - 0,45
d-Fab-2 = 0,45
A Mar7 . - 0.45
4-Apr-2 045 ']
A-Hay-21 0.45 [, 45
1A Jun-21 .45 0,45
4-Jud-2 0.45 0,45
A-hag-2 ] I'.-Ij .45
BT A2 [EH
-t 21 Fi . a5 -
La-Nav-21 A5 = [
1A-Deczl 45 A5
14-Jan-22 rAS EE
:mi?ﬂ! 1A% A5 -

L
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts are in Rs, crores unless otherwlse stated

HOFC bank Lir#ed |First and extutve charges aver the 31=Dub-20 " 3 5.00 2
recetvables of the Company uplo the
cxtent of 125% of the cutstanding
amaint &t afvy pelat of time. 21-Sep21 500 - = .
TATA CAPITAL First and exchesive charges over the 11,200
FINANCE LOAN-1 |portfcko of the Comnpany upte the
pxtent of 1.1% of the sutstanding 15-Apr-20 - - 048 -
amount at any point of time.
15-May-20 - : 0.48
S-Jun-20 : - 04
ST - - T
-Aug - 20 - - FEE] £
5-50p-20 - - 0.50 -
15-(rct-20 - - ]
-Now- 2 - - 0,5t -
rec-20 : - 0.52 =
5-1an-21 - - .52
S5-Fieh-21 - - iCF] -
s : : %1 :
- Apr-g41 .51 = 0.53 =
Hay-21 .4 - 0.54 -
5 Jun-21 54 - 054 -
5 Jul-21 X i -
15-Aug-21 % . ;.EE :
5-Sep-21 .58 - 0.56 -
S:0c1-21 156 - 0.5 -
5-fiav-21 ] - i -
AL Small Finance Firel and exclusive charges over the 11. B
Bank Loan-3 |portioéo of the Company wpto the
extent of 1,1x of the outstanding I-Apr-20 063 -
Amount at any point of time,
-Jun-20 - = .63 3
BT - = .25 =
= A 20 - [T :X] -
Sep-20 - 063 .
3-0ct-20 - (% -
-Hio- 0 E - 0.5 -
3-Dec-20 - E3 -
-lan-21 - 3 -
-Feb-21 . B3
3=Mpr-31 - 62 -
sApr-Z1 0.63 = X -
-May-2i 0,61 [ z
3-Jun-21 0. [ -
EEE] . 0. :
3-Ag-21 0, 0.63 -
First and exclusive charges over the
partfolic of the Company upio the S
HOFC TERM LOAN et of 1,33% of the cutstanding 5.85%: 30-Apr-20 - L 104 -
amcant at any peint of time.,
31-Hay-20 - 12 B
10-Jun-20 - {4 =
- - - - - -
E- sfug-20 4 4 -
Phﬂg—m - 1.04 -
31-0ct-20 - ] =
me-m - 0a -
11-Dec-i0 - 04 x
san- 1 = 04 -
Em-n - 1.04 -
E;I-Har-zt - O -
30-apr-21 04 M =
11-May-21 .04 KT e
I M-.;l ;|4 L -
A1-Bul? (4 104 -
I1-hug-21 04 1.04 -
305521 1.04 104 -
ResponsAbSty ECB g jnd excusive charges over the
porifolo of the Company upte the
extent of 1, 1x of the outstanding 11.35% Se-fug-22 34.50 3s50 -
amourt 8t any point of time.

RYE 2
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KISETSU SAISON
FIMANCE (INDIA) PWT
LTD

First and exclusive charges ower the
portfolio of the Company upto the
extent of 1.0 of the gutstanding
amount At any point of time,

12.50%

167

-
H TS
st | e

FEDERAL BANK LOAN
1

First and exclusive charges over the
portfolio of the Company upla the
extent of 1.10x of the cutstanding

amount &t amy peink of time,

10.55%

=
et
(=]

=
|
=]

Fe

(=]

a oo fofufe

[=1

CHOH Dl DPOOHCHO

O ool

ot L] (=]

1-0et-21

0-Maov-21

EHEEEEEEE NS

=

e

1-Dec-2

1 -

18-Feb-a3

3i-Mar-22

= ==

O-Ape-23

I

L-May-23

[l relsls

E ] e E e T e 0 s AR o B B o o

30-Jun- 32

et

Syl d

=

31 -Aug-2d

b e
b b b

30-Gep-22

31-Oct-22

Bl-Now-23

31-Dee-22

2 i

MOATHERN ARC
CAPITAL LIMITED-
LOIAN B

HNA

12.65%

i6-Apr-20

-
"
Lt

[5-May-20

-Jur-20

-Jul-20

LA (o P

-Alg-20

o b e

-Lape

=20

i

S-Mew-20

7Dt~ 30

S-lan-21

S-Feb-21

-Mie- 41

Jh-Har-21

ot = | e e o P
fizlefaleisielelele

Al Small Finance
Barnk Loan-4

First and exchusive charges guer the

1Dﬂ'ﬂ‘|ﬁl’|iﬂ of the Comparty upla the

extent of 1.30x af the outstanding
famount. at any polnt of time,

12.50%

18-Apr-20

18- jun-30

18-yl 20

18-Aug-20

18-5ep-20

gk

15-Drg-21

18-Jan-

18-Feb-22

18-Mar-d3

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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Notes ferming part
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All amounts are in @S, crores ynless otherwize stated

Hiranardani Financial
ServloRs

First rank excusive and  conbinuing
charge by way af Hypothecation
boerowers present and fulure book deb
ereatesd out of Hiranandand  Financial
Senvices Limited Teem loan from tme tof 13,005
[cime g0 a5 to madntain mEnimum asset
cover of 1.0x Hmes on  principa
etitstanding.

4-Api-21

0.40

’
ko4

A AN

e | | s el

-ﬁun-ahmma. I

=

SIDET

Exchugive First Charge by way of
Hypothecation and Book Debls and
recelwables of the loans provided by thel
Barrower b HSHES which aré standdnd
assets in the Books of the Borrower a4
per  extant  RBI  Guigelines  with|
minimum Bsset cover of 1.10 times.

10-Apr-21

290

Inest In Vishan ECB-
Tranche 2

Hypathecation ol b
debtifrecetvables maintained at  al
times at 60% of aggregate prncipa
putstanding. Security oreation  ang) 11005
[pertection required 85 per lows and
regulntions

20-5ep-23

43,33

Invest In Vigion ECB-
Tranchs 1

Hypathecation ol bpgk
gebisfrecervables  malntained at &
times at 60 of aggregate principa 11.655%
outstanding, Secwrily  creation  an
perfection required as per laws &
feguiaticns

di-Jun-23

B4.ED

HOFC Term Loan -2

Exchsive Charge 1.3x cover on bookl
debls of mindimum regular repayment off
4 manths. Overdue interest soouedle spse
inferest not (o e considered

I0-Apra2i

0.6

LMay 71

ﬂ.lﬁp?[

Mul-d i

~Aug-21

0-Sep-21

1-Oct-J1

0-Maw-31

“Dec-21

-Jan-22

!-H‘_lr-fﬂ

28 Feb-a?

B-Apr-37

&L

T1.May-72

I0-Jun-22

|

1-Jul-22

f=1
e

11-Aug-37
0-Eegid

1033

A0 Hery - 33

B2

31-Dec-22

31-Jan-23

P
o s

[1]

28 -Febn2)

1-Mar-33

B A7

1-May-73

30:Juin=23

3i-Jul-23

31-Awg-23

30-Sep-23
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Federal Bank TL-2 Exclusive Charge on specifie receivables
created cub of berm loan with a coser a5, 10% 11-Ape-21 0.5% = = :
1.10 Hmes,
11-May-21 055 5 :
11-Jun-21 0.55 =
1-Ril-21 .55 : -
1-Alg-21 - K] - - .
1-Gep-21 55 = :
1-Ock-21 .55 - :
=M -2 _5-'% a a
Dec-21 ] -
-1an-22 5 =
11-Feb-27 .55 - =
11-Hpr- 0.55 - -
11-Apr-22 Bt
11-May-22 EE =
11-Jun-73 055 : -
1i-Jul-22 E5 : z
shipg. 22 : -
“Sap-23 .
1-Dit-27 5 = -
1-how-23 .55 :
v - ). " =
Fal-23 X = =
-Mar-23 0,55 3 -
11-Apr-3 0,55 & =
“May-d3 0.5% - -
=Min-23 . - .
“hil-23 ki3 - -
1-Aug-2t 55, 5 -
11 Lﬂ_—':! .55 - =
~t-23 [5 S =
=Mew-23 ?E = - =
D23 J,5 z -
1-Jan-24 155 = = -
11-Feb-24 )75 : . :
CSE Bank Term Loan |Exclusve charge by WAy ]
hypothecation  of  standard  isan
recelvables of the Company  {both
present end future) created out of loasgd, 10% I0-Apr-21 0,56 - - .
available from our bank with an asset
cover of 1,104 on receivabiles.
55 . . 5
.56 & -
)56 .
0,548 v -
56 L
.56 -
-Jar 0.56 - -
[38-Feb-22 0.56 - -
JlMar-23 0, -
I0-Apr-23 56 5
31-May-22 .56 -
f-Jun-37 0,56 -
1-jul-2 55 - -
1-Aug-27 4 T
I0-Sap-23 ! = .
31-0ct-22 5 - .
30-Now-22 5 r =
31-Deg-27 G = =
31-lan-73 5 :
Foli-23 X - 1
=Mar-23 ! - -
F-Apr-23 .56 - . -
11-May- = a F
J-Jun- .56 : : -
1-Jai-23 0.5 . =
1=Aug-23 . 5 =
30-Sep-23 56 . i
31-Ocr-23 1, 56 = -
O-Maw-23 .56 - - -
i-Dec-d3 .56 = - -
3olan 24 : - : :
26-Feb24 5k B .
31-Mar-24 K . =

*The amounts mentioned above represents only principal oufstantng on all Types of borrow

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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16

17

18

1%

Derivative financial instromants

Particulars

Az at
March 31, 2021

Az at
March 31, 2020

Carried atb fadr value

Crogs Currency Swap rate contract not designated in hedge asooanting relatiorahip

L.
Tatal 179

Biotignad value of dervative financlal instrument &5 g, 162,72 crores | Masch 31, 2020 Rs. 34,50 croves )

Other financial liabllities

At amaortised cost
Expenses payable
Employes berefil payable

Provisions

Provision for emploves benefits
Prowision fod gratuly

Provision for compentated absentes
Prowision foe bomus

Other non-financial liabilities

Particulars

Statutedy dies Davabie

Fayables on purchase of property, plant and oquipment
Pra EMI interedt réceived in advance

EM1and interest recetved in advance from customers

Share capital
Authorised capital

5,500,000 (March 31, 2020: 5,000,000 Shares)
Equity shares of Rt. 10 each with woting rights

#9,100,000 (March 31, 2020: 23,000,000 Shases)
Compialsadily Conventible Cumulative Prélimends
shares (OCPS) of Rs. 10 each

Iszuwed, Subscribed and fully paid up

4,530,500 (March 31, 2020: 4,630,500 Shares)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with woting rights

Lesg: amount recoverable from CSOP Trust (face
valug of 550,294 shares of Rs. 10 sach held by trust)
[Masch 31, 2020: 560, 294) [Refer Note J8]

26,182,448 Shases (Harch 31, 2030: 22,772 648
Shanes] §.01% Compulsority Converbible Cumalative
Proference Shares (COPS) of Rs. 10 each

Tatal — ]

745
M
10.17

Total

4.06
.7
0.62
.74

Tatal — A2

5.50

29.10

Total 24,60

453

(0.56)

26.18

Total —iE

3m
[t
0.44
1.63

.00

23.00

4 |3

{0.56)

22.77
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20 share capital (cant'd)

Hotes:
(i} Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and ambint Gutstanding ad the beginning and at the end of the reporting parisd:

Particulars Cpning Fresh issue Cloging Balance
Balance

As at March 31, 2020
Equity shares with voting rights

Mo.of shares 45,30, 500 . 4B,30,500
Amoink 463 . 453
0.01% Compulsarily Convertible Cumulative Praference Shares {CCPS)

No.of shares 2,27, 72,648 - 2.27,72,648
Asmount 2277 . 2797
As at March 31, 2021

Egquiity sharas with voting rights

Ha.of shares 4B, 30, 500 . 48,300,500
Amgung 453 2 4,83
0,01 % Compulsorily Convertibla Cumulative Preference Shares (CCPS)

No.of shares 22072648 34,079,800 2.61,82 448
At 3237 341 26.18

[} Rights, Preferences and Restrictions altached to shares:

The Company has only one class of eqaity shares having pas value of Bs, 10 per share. Each hobder of Equity shanes is entitied 1o one wabe per
share. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharehoiders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company adter ditribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion of their sharehalding.

(i} As on March 31, 2021, the Compasy has 2,068, 764 0.01% CCPS of Rs, 10 cach fully pald up at premium of Rs. 19.00 per shase, Theoe shares have
been aliotted Detween SAIF Partners India W Limited and Accion Africa - Asis Investment Campany in equeal proportion. The Preference Shares shall
b coavertible into equity Shares of the Company in accordance with the Schodule 7 6f the Series A Sharshalders Agreement dated Jamuary 29,
2015 executed by the Company wih SAIF Partners India v Limited and Accian Alrica - Asa Trvestmsent Company.

(i) As on March 31, 2021, the Company has 880,718 0.01% CCPS of Ra. 10 each fally paid up at premium of Rs. 56,17 per shase, Thase shares have
been alictted batwaen SAIF Partners India V Limited and dccon Africa - Asia Investment Comgary i equal proportion, The Preference Shares shall
bt convertible inta equity Shares of the Company in accorgance with the Scheduli 7 of thé Serles A1 Sharehalkiers Agreement dated 31st July 2015
executed by the Company with SAIF Rartners Intka ¥ Limited and Acclon Africa - Asla Envestmant Company,

{¥] As on March 31, 2021, the Company has 1,335,756 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up ot premism of Rs. 58,13 per share, These shanes v
heen aliotted between SALF Partners India V Limited aad Accion Africa - Asls Tnvestment Company in equsd propaetion, The Brefersnce Shaces shall
be carvertible into equity Shanes of the Company In accordance with the Schedule 7 of the Serles A1 Sharshnlders Agresment dated 314 July 20015
executed by the Campany with SAIF Pamners India ¥ Limited and Accion Alrica - Asia Trvestment Company.

{vi} As on March 31, 2021, the Company has 719,252 0.01% CCFS of Rs, 10 sach fully palg up 8t premtum of Rs, 58,03 per share. Those shares have
Been allotted betwesn SAIF Partners India V Limited and Accan Africs - Agia Tnvestment Company in equal proportion. The Preference Shares shall
be convertible inte equity Shares of the Company in sttordance with the Schedule 7 of the Series A1 Sharehcaders Agreement dated 21st Duly 2015
eeeguted by the Company with SATF Partness India ¥ Limited and Accian Africa - Asla Tavestment Company,
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{vii)

Share capital (cont'd)

Az on March 31, 2021, the Company has 6,556,360 0.01% CCPS of B, 10 each and 100 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid wp ak premidurn of
Rs. 96.76 per share. These shases have been alictted between SAIF Partngrs India V Limited ard Asclon Africa - Asia Investment Company and LGT
Cagital Invest Maurltive PCC with Cefl EAP. The Preference Shares shall be convertible Inta equity Shares of the Company in scoordance with the
Schedule 7 of the Series B Shareholders Agreement dated 13th Ociober, 2016 executed by the Company with SAIF Partners India ¥ Limited and
Accion Africa - Adia Investment Company and LGT Capital Invest Mauritios PCC with Cell Efvp,

(vii) As on March 31, 2021, the Company has 5,736,709 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 sach and 100 equity shares of &s. 10 each fully paid up at peemium of

i}

fx)

LEL

(i)

A3, 246,24 per share. These shares have been alictied between SAIF Partners India ¥ Limited, LGT Capital Trvest Mauritius POC with Cell E/VP and
Capitals LP . The Preferente Shares shall be convertible into equity Shares of the Company in actordamoe with the Schedule 7 of the Seres B
Shapshallers Agresment dated May 24, 2018 executed by the Comaany with SAIF Patners India W Limited, LGT Capgital lavest Maurtivs BOC with
Cedl VP and CapitaiG LP,

As on March 11, 3021, the Company has 54,735,089 0.01% CCPS of Rs. 10 sach and 100 equity shases of s, 10 sach fully paid up ot premive of
Rs. 416,70 per share. These shares hawe been alictted betwienn LGT Capital Invest Mausiiug PCC with Cell EAV, CapiaiG LP, Falcon Edge India 1 LP
and MA] Invest Financlal Inclusson Fund [T K/S. The Preference Shares shall by corvortible into equity Shares of the Campany in acooedance with
the Schedule 7 of the Series D Shareholders Agreement dated 14th February, 2009 exetuted by the Company with SAIF Patners Incka V' Limited,
Accion Africs - Asia Investment Company, LGT Capftal Invest Mauritivs POC with Cell E/VP, Capitads LP, Fakon Edge India I LP and MAJ [nvest
Financial Inchusion Fund I1 Kf5.

A5 on July 15, 2020 the Company issued 34,059,800 0.05% CCPS of R 10 each fully pald up at premium of Rs. 60587 per thare, These shares
have been allotted betwoen LGT Capital Envest Mauritius POC with Cefl Efve, CapitalG Internationsl LLC, Falcon Edge India 1 LP, A%1 Emerging Fund
TLLF and MAJ [nvest Firancial Inclusion Fund 1 /S, The Preference Shaces shall be convertible into equity Shares of the Company in accondance
with the Schedule 7 of the Seres £ Shaseholders Agreement dated June 08, 2030 executed by the Company wath SAIE Partners [ndia V
Limifed, AS1 Emarging Fund I LLP, LGT Capitel Invest Mauritius POC with Cell EfVP, Capftal LP, CapitalG Internaticnal LLE, Fakon Edge lndia 1 LP
and MAD Irvedt Financial Dnclusion Fund [T /S,

The heldeds of the Series A Series AL COPS, Series B CCPS, Series C O0PS, Series D O0PS and Sories E CCPS may convert the CCPS in whole or
part into cquity shares at any thme befoce 1% (Nineteen) pears from the date of ssuance of the same.

Details of equity shares held by each sharehoider holding more thas 5% shares In the Company:

As at Ag ak
Pl rticylsne March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Humber of L Mumber of %
shares held shares held
Equity shares with voting rights
Sanjay Sharma 9,54, 750 19,7 7% 9,54 750 19.77%
Shankh Corporabion LLP 849,625 17.59% 6,459,625 17.55%
Shvet Comporabion LLP B.45,615 17.59% B 49 625 17.55%:
Vikram Jatley 6,310,000 131.06% €,31,000 13.06%
&ye Finance Emoloves Welfera Trest 560,254 11.60% £.E0, 294 11.60%
Hamrats Sharma 2,61,965 B4 1.61.965 5.42%
0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference shares
SAIF Pasiners India ¥ Limdted 61,559,652 23.53% 61.59,452 27.05%
E‘::Lglm Irvest Mauritios PCC with el EAvP 53,590,925 05, 44, 77 565 19,.56%
I LP 39,37,337 15.04% ¥5,17,217 17,29%
MAY Invest Financial Inchesion Fund 11 #/S 22.04,985 4 18, 39,549 B DB
Falcon Edge Ingia | LFP 43,31.587 15.76% 36,44 BT % 16.01%
AD1 Emerging Fund TLLP 32.00,565 12.20% 27,13.451 11.93%
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21 Other egquity

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Securities Pramium Account
'l:l'ntl‘.'i‘rl'llj batance 452 T8 a4L3 78
Add: Premmium on shanes issued during the perlod 25, 56 .
Clasing baiance Total —2231 —Tl
Share gption cutstanding account
Dpbibag baldsie #4.23 15
Add: Deferred stock compensation axpense 3,53 .60
Legs: Utilisation of deferred stock compensatian expense 0.30
gt i w10 —
Statutory reserve under section 451C of RBI Ack
Opening balance 11.75 527
Add : Additions during the year 3.38 546
Closing batance Total :m m
Ratained oarnings
Operning balance 20.92 [4.82)
Add: Profit for the year 16.E7 32.45
Less: Trandles to Speiial rederves under sechon 451C of RET Act (338 (6.48])
Less: Dividend an Compulsorily Comvertible Cumulative Preference Shares (0.00) {0.00}
Add | Comprehensive income ler the year Nl i{l?_'IE
Closing balance Tabal ig;i:

Grand Taotal 716.25 AB9.67

Nature and purpose of reserves

Statutory reserves
The teserve ls created as per the provision of Section 45(IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, This ks & restricted reserve and no dpRrepriation
can be made from this reserve fund gxcept for the perpose a8 may be prescribed by Resende Bank of Indla.

Securities Premium reserves

Securities premium feserve b used B0 record the premium on issun of shades, The reserve can be utdsed only for Bmited purposes such as Issuance
of bonws shares in accondance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2011,

Employee stock outstanding account

The Emgloyes Stock Options cutstanding represents amount of resenes crested by recoghition of compensation cost at grant date lair vadue on
slock options vested but not eercised by emplovecs and unvested steck optons In the Stotement of proft and loss in respeet of edquily-settled
share options granted to the eligitle employess of the Company in parsuance of the Emplayes Stock Optien Plan.

Ratnined aarnings

Retained camings or sccumulated suerplus represents total of all profits retained since Company ‘s inception. Retained earmings are credited with
current year profits, reduced by losses if any, dividend pay-outs, trangfers 0o General reserve of 8y Such other apgropriations to specfic
reserves R of the met defined bonefit Rabilities compeise actuarial gain or ks,

22 Interest Income

On Financial Assets measured at amortised cost

Interest on loand to customers 433,23 TN
Interest an Bepasits with banks 15,36 451
Tatal EEE
23 Fees and commission inceme
Sesvicing Fee 0.08 0,42
Delay payment charges , registration charges, cheque dishenour charges ot B.O5 8,84
: Total EI: E ii
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Particulars

As at
March ¥1, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

24 Met gain on financial instruments measured at fair valus thraugh profit or

lgds adcount

On trading portfolic

Inwestments

= Gain on sale of mutual funds
Others

= Derivatives (CrDss CLETency swap)
Tatal

-Realesed
Unsreaksed
Tatal
23 Other income

Miscellanecus Income

26 Finance Costs
On Financial liabilities measurad at Amortised Cost

Interest an term lpans fromm Banks and Mnancal institutions

Enfereat on debd securities

Interest on delaved pavment of statutory dues
Interest on leage labilities

Other bodiewien Cost

Logs on currency Auctuatian

27 HNet loss on fair value changes
Otheers {Unsealised b
= Derivatives (Cross currency Swap)

28 Impairment on financial assots

Impalrment on fnancial instruments &t amortised
Amcunts writben off (net of recoveries)

29 Employed banafit axpanse

Salarkes and wades
Cantribution to orovident and other funds

Expense on employied stock optich (ESOP) scheme [Refer note 18]

Staff wellare expenses
Gratuity oapenses

30 pepreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciaticn of progerty. plant and egulpment
Amartisation of intangible asscts
Depreciation on right of use sty

31 Other expenses

Hates & taxes

Communication Costs

Printing and stabionery

Legal and Professional chardes

Directors Fees

Payement 10 suditers [Refer Note (i) belaw]
Coaporate Soclal Responsibdity
Mernershio and subscriation fees

Travel and convevance

Tour and Travetling

Electricity supenses

Cifice Expenses

Bank chasges

Logs an salé of propety, plant and equipments
Mistellaneous Eupsnees

Total

Total

Total

Total

Tobal

3266
14841
1.‘&-!
2.20
{0,005

508

16.20
ira4

5.97
3.8

6.97

27.51
3,00
0.41
.57
5.19
3.19

1.00
.1
1.41
503
0.7
*71
LB 1]
193
1061
3.8%
0.a7
316
0.45
0.0
1.13
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Az at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Motes -
{1} Payment to auditors (comprises net of goods and service tax, where appkoable]:
Statulory awdit 0.28 0.43
Limibéd rewiew 0.0 0.20
Tax audit 0.02 a.03
Other certiflcations 0.06 .05
Total E— ] e ——
32 pegelosure pertaining ba corporate social f itlity exp
The Company spent Rs. 0.51 crores (Harch 31, 2020 - Rs, 0,18 crores), towasds Corporate Sackal Responsibility (C5R) activities as follows:
Particulars As pt Az &t
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year as per Section

135 of the Compankes Act, 2013 read with schedule VIE .51 o8
Construction/acouisstion of any assaet

- I cash x -
Tatal —— e e
On purposes ather than above

= [n cash 0.51 0.18
- Uingald N -
Total .51 .18

33 Earnings per share

Basic EFS amounits IS cafculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shangs
oulstanding during the year, Diluted earnings per share 5 comguied using the weighted average awnber of common and diluthie common
equivalent chares outstanding during the year, oxcept where the result would be anti-ddutive,

Particulars Ag at As ot

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Prafit attributable to equity holders 16.79 32.22
Liess: Freferende Dividend £ X
et Frofit attributable to equity hoiders 16,79 1222
Weighted average nember of equily shares sutstanding during the year - for Basic
. 3,00,32,047 2,76,03,148
Effeqy of diltive polential eguity shase equivadent a4,08 170 169085
Weighted average number of squity shares sutstanding dusing the pear = far Dilutive 3,04,40,217 2.79,72,233
Ei?x aamings per shase (Re.) 5.58 15.74
Dilrbed eamings per shane (Re.) 551 11,55
Hominal value per share (Rs.) 10,00 10,00

34 Centingent liabilities and commitments (to the sxtent not provided for)

Particulars As ab Ag at
March 3i, 2021 March 31, 2020
{1} Comemitmments
Estimated ameunt of contracts remaining (o be execubed on capital account and nat
prawided for - .
Cosnmaiments nelated to kbens sanctioned but not disbursed o073 0.0%

(W) During the year, the Company has recetved & demand for income tax under Income Tax AL 1961 for RS, 244 croces for the assessment yeas
2017-18, The oeder 18 disgputed by the Company amd the Company had filed an appeal before Commissicner of ncome Tax Appeals and has
deposited Bs. 0,48 crores as demand againet protest. Based on the epinien received fram the Company's consultant, the Company belicves that the
likelihood of matesalising the llability may arise.

35 Segment Information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reperting provided to the Chief Dperating Decision Maker (COOM). The
CODM makes strateges decisions and i responsible for allocating rescunces and assessang perlormance of the operating segments,

The CODM considers the entie business of the Company on 2 holistic basis to make operating deciBans reviens the cperating results of the
Company a5 & whole. Further the Company cperates in & singie reporable segment (.2, granting loans, which has similar risks snd returns for the
purpase of Ind AS 105 “Cperating segments”, and |s considerad 1o be the only reportable business segment. Further, the Company is aperating in
India whiich is considered as b single geographical sagment.
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36
{a}

[1=]

{el

Employes bonafits
Dofimied conteibaition alans

The Comparry makes Provident Fund to defined contribution plan for quaslying employees, Under the Schemes, the Company @B required to
contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Compary recognised Bs. 7.25 crodes orcras (Masch 34, 2020: Rs.
5.92 crores] for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable 1o these plans by the Company are at
fakes specified in the rubes of the schemed,

Othar long-term benefits

The company has a defined benefit beave encashment plan for Bs employess. Under this plan, they sre entitied to encashment of ssaned lsaves
subjject to certain limits and other condfons specifed for the same, The laklites towards leave encashment have been provided on the basts of
actuarial valuation,

Dafingd benafit olans

The Company™s gratuly scheme peovide for lump sem phyment o vested employess at rotirement, death while in emplopment or on bermination of
eviiploirent of an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service or part thereod in excess of six manths in terms of
provisions of Grabulty Act, 1972, Vesting scours upan completion of e years of sender,

The present valud of defined benefit obligation and the refated current service cost were measured using the projocted unit credit methad with
actuarial valuations bedng carried out at each balance sheet date,

Thie fallgwing table sumarsarises the components of net benellt expense recognised in the Stalement of Profit and Loss and the aments rectgrised

in the balance shest:

(i}

(L))

Particulars Aw at As at

Harch 31, 2021 March ¥1, 2020
TUrrent sevvice Cost 2.7 .04
Past service cosk . >
Intarest expense 0.30 015
Amaunt recognised in Statement of profit and loss 3.0% 215
Remeasurement of defined benefit Hability:
Actuarial (gain )/ loss froem changes in demographic assumptions [0.21]) {0.20)
Actuarial (gain]floss from changes in financial assumptions . 0,52
Acuariad (gain fioss from axporisnoe siljustments 0,34 0,11
Amount recognised in other comprehensive Incomn E:!; 031

Total —iL —dET

Particulors A at s at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fair walial of plan asseqs = =
Defined benefit abigation F.ds -l.-lg
Mot defined asset /(lability) recogniged in the Balance Sheet Tatal . 3

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Actual benefil payments (0,190 .
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Delined benclit obligatien at beginning ol tha yoar 340 (B
Current service CosL 2.7 L4
Past servipe cost - .
[nfedst Bxpense .30 o.1s
Remeasurement [gains)losses
Acfuarial [gain ) Lost trom changes in Nnandsl sssumplions = 0.52
actuarial (gain)iloss from experience adjustments 0.34 (8 [}
Actuarial (gain)/Loss from changes in dermographic agsumptions {0.21) {011}
Benefits pakd 10 35% =
Dofined baneiit obligation at end of the year 7.45 A, ah
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{w) Changes in the faic vales of clan assets ace as Falloas:

Fair vadae of plan assets at beginning of the year
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Dhscount rate [in o) B0 . b
Future salary increate (in %) 10.00%. 10, 00%%
Ratirement agi 6000 60,00
Adirition

Upko 30 years 26,10 24.00%
31-44 years 7.53% 701%
Abouve 43 yeass 0274 0.27%
Mortality LALH (2012-14) TALM [2012-14}

The discount rate is based on the prevaling masiet yields of Govemment of India securities as at the Balance Shest date for the estimated tenm of
cbligaions. The estimate of future salary Increases consadéred, takes info acoownt the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant
lactors.

Sensitivity Analvsis
Segnéficant actuanial sssumplions for the determination of the defined oblgation aré kcount rate, expected salary increase and miortality. The

sensitrvity analyses below have Deen determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective Bssumptions occurring at the end of the
repoiting pericd, while halding all other assumptions congtant.

Particulars As at A mt
March 31, 3021 March 31, 2020

Prasent Value of Obligation at the end of the peried T A5 49
Effect of +50 basis poinis in rate of discounting {0.55) (0,365
Effect of -5 basis points in rate of dscounting 0.63 040
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 745 LR L]
Effect of =50 basis points in rate of salary Increass 0.57 0,25
Effect of -50 basis points in rate of salary increase {0.52) [0.33)

{c}

The sensitiity analysis présented above may not b representative of the actual change in the defined it obligation a5 & i wnlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of Gre sncther 28 some of the pssumptians may be correlated.

Refined benefit plans [cont’d)

Furthermare, In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present valisa of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reparting period, which s the same as that appEed in cakulating the defined berefit obligation liability
recoanised in the balance sheet.

There wars no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis fram priar years,

Expariance adjustmants Prosant Falr value of Estimated gain/  Estimated gain/
volue of plan assots [loss) {loss) adjustmants
defined adjustments gn on plan pesets
benafit plan Habilities

obligation

2020-21 7435 " 024 -

2015-20 4.4 - [0.01) =

H8-19 1.99 v L) =

2017-18 0,60 - [0.00} -

201617 037 . 0.02 .

21516 013 - 0.04 Z

Bisk expasure;

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company |s expoped to @ rumber af rigks, the most significant of which are detalled below:

Interest Risk: The plan exposes the Company to the rsk of fall in interest retes. A Fall in interest rabes will result in an increass in the ultimate cost
of providing the aticve Berefit and will thus result in an inceeate i the valoe of the liaility (ms shown in financial statements ).
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ar

[a)

Liguidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company i nol able 1o meet the short-term/ long term gratity pay-outs, This may s due to non
avadability of enowgh cash / cash equivalent to meet the Gabilkies or holding of illiquid assets not being soid in time.

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants
I futwre. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used 1o determing the present
walse of chligation will have a beafing on the plan's labidty,

Demographic Risk: The Company has used cerain mortality and stinbion assumptions in valuation of the Eability. The Company 15 exposed to the
risk of actua! exparience turning out to be worse compansd (o the assumphion,

Regulatery Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the reguirements of the Paymant of Gratusy Act, 1972 (a5 amended from tme be
time}. There i a rish of change in regulations requising higher gratuity pay-outs (e.g. Increase in the maximwm BTt on gratuby of Bs. 20,00,000).

Related party disclosures

Disclosures in acoordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, as identified and certifed by the managemant, are set
AUl &5 Bebi:

Datails of related parties:
Dascription of relationship Mamas of related parties
Ky Managerial Persannel (KMP) Saajay Sharma - Managing Directar
Ashish Shanma - Chief Financial Officer bl Aprd 16, 2071
Samir Mehta - Deputy CED from August 3, 2030
Wikram Jethey - Whole-time Director (il Aped 19, 2020
Wikram Jotiey - Non-executhve Director froem Apcil 20, 2020
Entities awer which KHPFg hawe significant influence Shyvet Corporation LLP
Shankh Corporation LLP
Ave Fmnance Emploves Welfare Trust
Strateqic Rescurces bl May 31, 2020
Entites exercising sionificant influence over the Comoany SATF Partnprs Tndéa W Limied
Falcon Edge India I LP
A9Y Emeerging Furd 1 LLP
LGT Capitad Invest Mauritius PCC with Cedl £/vF
CapitaiG LP
CapitalG Inernatianal LLC
Subsidiary Company Foundation for Adeancement of Micra Enterpreaes { Section §
Compary]
Relatives of KHP Namrata Shanma
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37 Related party disclosuras (cont'd)

(b} Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2021 and outstanding batanca as ot March 31, 2021

Particulars Az Bt As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

A, Managesial remumesation

Key Manageriy Persanng! 6.73 3.74

{Exchagding prosdsian for gratuily snd compensated

absences a5 the same are actuarially determined for

i Company as & whole and thus Rol separately

ascertainable far the Director)

B.._Shares Issued Dutkna The Year

Entities exercising sanficant influpnce cver the Company

A2l Emesaing Fund | LLP 0.49 5

LGT Cap®al Invest Mauritivs PCC 051 :

CaphalG International LLC 116 3

Falcon Edge India 1 LP 049 [

L. Security Premium. Receied

Entities pwercicing shnificant influence ower the Comaany

ASL Emerging Fund 1 LLP 29,51 -

LGT Canital Iivest Hauritius PCC £E 34 E

Capitaks Internatianal LLT plixie] =

Falean Edae India | LP 39,51 =

. Divvidend on 00.01% an COPS

Entities axencising significant influence aver the Company

SAIF Partners [ndia V Limited 0.0006 00006

CapitalG Internationad LLC 0.0001 .

#91 Emerging Fund I LLP 0.0003 .0002

LGT Capital Invest Mauritius POC 0.000S 0.0004

CaoitalG LP 0.0004 0.0004

Falcon Edoe India [ LP 00004 0. 0004

b

Saniay Sharma a 0.002

K. lnvestment in subsidiary comanny

Fowndation for Advancement of Micre Enterprives . 0.25

L. Corperate social responsibiity

Foundation for Advancement of Micro Erterprises 04l 0.8

Particulars ™ As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balance cutstanding at the end of the yvear

M. Long berm kans and advances

Aye Finance Employes Wallare Trust 013 013

M. Invesiment sn subsidiacrs comaany

Feurdation for Adwancermnent of Micro Enterprises [ 4] nas
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38 Employee share based payments

The Compary at its Extra Ordinary General Megting held on November 29, 2016 has apprgved an Employer Siock Oplion Plan 2016 ["the ESO®
2016 Plan’} and has authoriged the Company bo istue slotk options under the above plan, The Company has poavided loan to Aye Finance Emplayes
Weltare Trust for purchase of 5,60,2%4 Equaty shares (ESOP Shareg) from the exiiting sharcholders. The Company has granted 390,473 opticns as
at March 31, 2020, each optien i to Be eohverted into one fully paid-up equity share of the Company B8t s exescise prioe of Rs. 29 por option. The
westing peviod s 4 years (10%, 20%, 0% and 40% In 1st, Znd, 3od and 4th year respectively) commancing from the date of grant of options. It is
the intention of the Company that the oplions shall exercise on the day after the Bsting of the shares pursuant to an [P0 of the Company, Duing
the year, the Compary has granted 6,823 options on July 03, 2020, Fair valuation has been carried at the grant date uting the Black-Scholes
mouded, The shares of the Comparny are nat lsted an any stock ewchange. Acooedingly, the expected median volatility for sted poer group has been
considered.

In Getober 2020 the ESOP Man 2016 was gscontinged and balasce 115,751 shares of ESOP posl were branslenied 1o a new ESOP Plan

During the financial year, the Company appeoved a new Employes Stock Oplion Plan 2020 ("the ESOP 2020 Flan™) and kas suthsdsed the Company
b issue stock gptions urder the aboye plan. The Company has provided loan to Aye Finance Emglores Welfare Trust for purchase of 532,518 Equity
thares (ESOP Sharet) from the existing sharebalders, The Compasy has granted 207,850 options as at March 31, 2021, each cpbion is to be
converted Into one fuly pald-up equilty share of the company at an eworcise peice of Ry, 615.67 per option. The vesting period |5 4 years (with 25%
wach ypear) commencing from the date of grant of cptions, Tt is the intertian of the Company that the options shall exercise on the day aRer the
Esting of the shares pursuant te an IPO of the Company. Duwing the year, the Company has granted 226,481 options oa Jan 02, 2021. Fair
valuation has been camried at the grant date using the Black-Scholes model, The shares of the Compamy are not listed on any stock exchange,
Accordingly, the expoected median wolatility for listed peer growp has been congidered,

Advance of Rs. 175 crores pald to the Aye Finance Welfare Trust for subscribing to the shares of the Company has been adjusted for Rs. 0.58

crofes i Note 20 besng the face vilue of shares issued to the trust and Bis. 1.06 croves with Securites Premivm acoount in Note 21 being the
premium at which the shares wene issusd

Employes steck cptions details as on the Balance Sheot date a0e a5 folaws:

Particulars March 31, 2021
Geart dite 02-lan-13]  02-Jun-17 um;% 02-Jul-1 02-Jul-1 02-3ul-20] 02-Jan-21
Exercise price (Rs.] Re 24  Rs. 29 Fs. As. 24 Rs. 2 Ros. 28 5. 616
per optian]  per option por aption e dption per gpt Pt pitian| per optian|
Dutstanding at the 1,009,078 5,307 32,463 3,851 7,82,37 . -
heginning of the year
Dptions gronted - - " . - 6 A2y 2,26,481)
Options vested and - . - - : -
exercisable
HEH unwestied = - L = - - =
Optans cancelled - - 56 . Ak 514 B 16,631
Optians cutstanding 1,089,076 5,307 16,655 3,851 2,47,761 6,823 2,07,850 |
[Particulars March 31, 2020 |
l:;rm: daste 0F-Jan-17]  02-Jun-17] 02-Jan- 18 02-Jul 18] 02-Jul-1
Exarcise price (R} Rg. 2%, RS, 29,00 Rs. 29.00 As. 29.00 Ry, 25,
per per option) ey ophian per option per option
Gutstanding st the begnning of the year 1,80, 944 &, 757 4762 5,351 ]
Diptions grantes ; - E : 3,07,123
Dpticns vested and exercisable 53,057 4511 163 i ]
\Cxpkigns cangefied 19.7 - 530 L 14,847
Dptions outstanding m.n.'ﬂ_m:' 32483 | !«.I;ﬂ—hul?_l
Waeighted average fair value of stock opti granted during the year is as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Grant date 112-11.-1-151 0F-Jan-21 02-1ul-19]
[Hurmber of options granted 6.623 2,26,481 3,09,122
Weighted average fair value [Rs,) 597 6] 245.03 421,85
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an

Mathed used for accounting for share based paymaent plan

Thear Company has used the fair value method 1o accoust for the compensation cost of stock options (o ompicyees, The fair vahee of oetions used are
estirmated on the date of grant weing the Black - Scholes Hodel, The kiy assumptions used in Black - Scholes Model for calculating fadr value as on

the date of respective grants are;
Fair value of the
& underlying share in
Grunt date i“rm"r““_ Expactad el ::.":;ﬁ':: Dividend yield | the market at the
tima of the eption
grant (Rs.]
[02-Ran-1 4 4 B9 4 Yidrs 41 570 [{L7 Zi.040
j02-Jun-17 4853 4 Yoars ] G Qi F2.00 |
02-Aan-18 4 559% A Tears 41 97% (1L ] 11143
Diz-jul- 18 4 000 4 Years 41.97% {65, ] 256,24
03-Jui-19 4 B3 4 Ypars 41 87% [t 447,37
07 Jul- 20 4 B0 4 Years 41.57% e G567
03-jan-31 & 0% 4 ears 47 44% i £15 87
Shares reserved for iS50e under !mﬁﬂu iEk Optign Plan
Emiployis Stock | Emplayes Stock
Option Plan, 20 Opticn Plan, 2016
Mo, of Stack Mo, of Stock
|Particutars aptions/Equity |  options/Equity
shares shares
8. Mumber of equity shares approvedfreserved for bsue o empioyess of the Company drawn in &, 76,039 560,704
lia-cmrdanu with Section 62(1}b] and afl other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companses Act, 7013
read with Companies (Share Captal and Debenturns) Rules, 2004 and other Bules framed thereunder:
b, Options granted under the schame up o March 31, 2021 2,33 304 541,704
€. Dptions cancelled wp to March 35, 2021 and added back to pool for future grants 18,631 92 582
d. Balance avadlable wnder the schems For futuré grants {d=a-b+c) 4 61, 366 1,101,273

Incoma faxes

This neate provides an analysis of the company s income tax expense, show amounts that are recoghised directly i equity ard how the tax expense
I5 affected by non-assesssble and non-dedoctible bems. It also explaing ssniicant estimates made in relation to the company’s tax positians.

Particulars

A% ab
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Accounting pral before tax

Imcome tay sEpense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the vear
Tax for earlier wears

Tatal current thx sxpense
Deferred tao

Credit réecognised in Statement of profit and foss
Tatal deferced thk axpenta/ [ benefit)

Incama tax expense récegnised in the statement of profit and loss
Deferred tax relating to other comprahansive incoma

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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Y
{16.14]

(16.14)

7.54
(0.08])
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o

{43

Income taxes [eont’d)
Reonciliation of Lax expense and the adcounling prof multiofied b India's Lox rate:

The [ax charge shown in the stalement of proft aad loss differs from the taa change that would asppdy i all profits had been charged at India
corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting peofit multiphed by India’s domaestic tax rate for the years eeded

Margh 31, 2020 and 2017 is, a3 ollows;

Particulars AS b
March 31, 2021

As st
March 31, 2020

Profit from continuing operations befoss mpome Lax expence 23,26 39,90
Apolicable tax rate 25.17% 25.07%
Computed tax axpanse 585 10.07
Tax eifect of :
Expenses Disallowed Permanent nature 094 0.97
Empact of dedction to HBFC w's 36 {4.15] {1.25)
Expense disallowed of temporany differencos 1.50 1350
Defersed tax cradit on tomporary ddfferences (2.35] (16.14)
Tax for sarbier years (1.50} «
Tofal tax expense/(Income) recognised in other compoeh incosne 636G 7abk
Income tax expense recognised in the stabement of profi ard loss 6,39 754
Income kax reconnised in cther comprehensive income {0.03] (008
Dedferred tay assels fhabilitlos
Companents of deferred tax Statement of Other
: As b Az ot

assets) (liabilities) profit and  comprehonsive Othors

March 31, 2020 lods H o, March 3%, 2021
Heasurement of financial assets at
amartised cost 79,83 {8.78) .05
Moasuremant of Snancial abilities at [2.54) 40 {2.14)
mmartised cost
Difference in book balance of 052 018 . 0.
property, plaat and equipment as par
companies et and Income Lax act
Provisien for gratuity and 1.37 1.56 0.03 205
compensated absences
Cthers oLi4 1.90 2.4

29,32 2.26 0.03 31.61

Components of deferred tax Statamant of Other
aasers/ {liabilities) s nt profitand  comprehensive Sthers As.st

March 31, 2019 ladd i " March 31, 2020
Messurement of Mmarcial assets at 1329 16,54 29,83
armnriteesd roet
Measuremant of financial labilites at [1.52) (1.02) - [2.54)
prnortived cost
Defference in book Balanoe of 035 0.y 05z
property, plant and equipment as per
companies act and Income tax act
Provision for grafuity and 056 0.33 0.08 LI7
compensated absences
DOthers [k ] 0.1 o14

13.11 16.13 008 19.32
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40 The Company does not have any lang term contracts Including derivative contracts for which there are amy material
foreseeable losses,

41 Tnere are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educational and Protection Fund by the Company.

42 The Company does not have any year end unhedged foreign currency exposures.

43 Standards issued but not yet effective

There are nelther new standards nor amendments to existing standards which are effective for the annual period beginning
frown April 1, 2021,

44 Disclosures relating te securitisation

A The information gn securitisation of the Company as an originater in respect of securitisation transaction done during the year

|5 given below:
Ag at As at
S.Mo Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Total number of transactions entered during the year “ ;]
Total number of lpan assets - 50,914
Taotal bock value of loan assets - 516.50
Sale consideration recelved - 467.77

B The information on securitisation of the Company a5 an eriginator in respect of outstanding amount of securitised assets is
given below:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1 Mo, of SPV's sponsered by NBFC for securitisation bransactions B ]

S.No Particulars

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of SPVs 134.33 338.34
sponsared by the NBEC

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with
MRR 25 on the dabe of balance sheet
1) Off-balance sheet cxposures
a) First Loss . -
b) Others - :

i} On-balance sheet exposures
&) First Loss 40.23 45.51
b) Others 45.29 51.43

4. Amount of exposures Lo securitization transactions other than MRR
i) off-balance sheet exposures
- Exposure 1o own seceritization
a) First Less . i
b} Loss - .

- Exposure to third party securitisation
a) First Loss - £
b} Loss - =

ii) On-balance sheet exposures

- Exposure ta own securitization

&) First Loss . .
b} Loss B 2

= Exposure to third party securitisation
a) First Loss . . -
b} Loss j ; - -

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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46 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled,

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 months After 1Z months Tatal
months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 191.60 - 191.60 172.18 - 172,18
Bank Balance other than cash 164,99 2.18 167.17 50.93 5.75 S6.68
and cash eguivalents
Derivative financial instruments - E - - 3.28 3,28
Loans 760.30 740.46 1,500.76 7B2.66 934,16 1,716.52
Investments . 12817 198.17 - 688 6.88
Other Financial assets 16.68 - 16.68 1.64 - 1.64
MNon-financial Assets
Current Tax assets {Net) - 0.37 0.37 ] 1.03 1.03
Deferred tax Assets (Net) - 3181 31.61 - 29.32 29.32
Property, plant and equipment - 5.31 5.31 - 5.78 5.78
Right of use assets - 20.37 20,37 - 11.53 11.53
Capital work-in-progress = 0.01 0.01 . 1.21 1.21
Other intangible assets - 1.56 1.56 - 0.45 0.49
Other non-financial assets 4,88 . 4 88 5.18 - 5.18
Total Assets 1,138.45 1,000.04 2,138.49 1,012.59 999,43 2,012.02
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Debt securities 357.76 670,66 1,028.42 580.82 589.61 1,179.43
Borrowings {other than debt 111.34 185.94 297.28 57.08 215,99 273.07
securities)
Lease liability &.45 16.25 22.70 3.68 B8.23 12,11
Derivative financial instruments - 1.79 1.7% - -
Other financial liabilities 5.81 - 5,81 5.22 - b.22
Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 15.48 7.45 22.93 10,93 6.83 17.76
Other non-financial iabilities 12.86 - 12.86 6.72 . B.72
Equity
Share Capltal . 30.45 30.45 - 27.04 27.04
Other Equity - 716.25 716,25 - 489.67 489.67

Total liabilities and Equity 509.70 1,628.79 2,138.49 674,65 1,337.37 2,012.02
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47 Capital

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adegquacy
requirements of the local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using,
among other measures, the regulations issued by REL

The Company has complied in full with all its externally impesed capital requirements over the reported period. Equity share capital
and other equity are considersd for the purpose of Company's capital management,

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are 1o ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according te changes In economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
payment to sharehclders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. Mo changes have been made to the objectives,
policies and processes from the previous years, However, they are under constant review by the Board.

Regulatory capital

Carrying amount
Particulars As at As ot
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Ther 1 Capital 667.32 345 82
Tier 1T Capital - -
Total Capital [-FiEF] 445,87
Rigk weighted assets 1,620.58 1,440.44
Tier [ Capital Ratio (%) 41.18 30.95
Tier 11 Capital Ratio (%} 0.00 D.Dﬂza

Tier 1 capital consists of shareholders’ equity and retained earnings. Tier 11 Capital consists of general provision and loss reserve
against standard assets . Tier 1 and Tier [l has been reported on the basis of Ind AS financial information.

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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A8 Financial risk management framework

The Campany™s principal financial labilities comprise borrowings from banks and debentures, The main purpose of these financiad Babiinses 5 to finance the
Company's operations and o suppest 22 operations. The Company's financial assels inchade loan and advances, Fvestments and cash and cash egquivalents that
derker directly from Bs ooeratinns.

In the course of its business, the Company | exposed to certain financial risks namely coeddt sk, interest sk, price risk, currency risk & liquidity risk. The
Company's primary focus & to achieve better predictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potentisl advarss sifects on jts financisl performance,

The Cornpany's board of directors has an overall responsibdy far the estatlishrnent and oversight of the Compary's risk managenent framewosk. The baard of
girectors has established the risk mansgement committes and asset labdity cormmiltes, which & respondible for developing and manitoring the Company 's risk
managemant policies. The comimittéd réports regularly to the board of directors on Its activities,

The Company's risk management policies are establshed to identify ard analyse the risks faced by the Company, o set appropeiate risk Bmits and controls and to
moniter fisks and adhérence te limits. risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes In market conditions and the Campany s
DELiviLees,

The Company's risk management committes owersess how management monitors complisnce with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and
rewiews the adequacy of the risk management framework in refation to the risks faced by the Company,

48.1 Cradit Risk

Credit risk Is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its custormners fail to discharge thelr contractual eblightions, The Company has a comprehensive
framework for manitoring credit quality of its lpans and advances primarily based on days past duee monitoring ab year end. Repayment By individus! customers and
portfolio is tracked regulacky and required steps for recovery are Raken thiowgh Mallov wps and begal recourss.

Copcentraticng arige when & number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or actieities |n the same geagraphical region, or have similar
economéc features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in econcemic, poftical or other condations. in
crder to avosd excesshve concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specilic guidelines bo foous oh spreading its keading portfolic across
various products/statesfcustarmer base with & cap on maximim ime of exposuce for an individusdGroup.

The befow amounts does nat include the impact of EIR an applicable lees and intersst accrued on customer loans,

a  Credit quality of financial loan

As at Asm at
Farticulars _March 31, 30621 March 31, 3020
Gross carrying value of loans : Mortgage Loans
Stage 1 10.00 16,18
Stage 2 2.55 0.11
Stage 1 0.55 0,59
Total gross carrying walue as at reporting date 13.10 16,89

As &b s at
Particulars M 31, 2021 March 3i, 3620
Gross carrying walue of loans @ Quasi Mortgage loans S
Stage 1 170.07 277,69
Stage 2 are: 3.88
Shage 3 12.73 1030
Total gross carrying value as at reporting date 230,63 291.87

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Gross carrying value of loans : Mypothecated loans
Stage 1 1,169.16 1,430.44
Stage 2 127.87 B2
Stage 3 38,70 26.05
Tatal gross carrying value as at reporting date 1,335.73 1472649

The Compary reviews the credit guality of it leans based on the ageing of the iban at the yesr end and hence the Company has calgulated its BCL allowances on &

coliectivie basts,

Inputs fdprad in calgulption of ECL

In assessing the impalirment of financlal loans wnder Expected Credit Loss {ECL) Moded, the sssets have been segmented into three stages, The three siages reflect
the general pattesn of credic deterioration of & financlal instrument. The differences in accounting between stages, relate to the recognition of expected credit kasses

and the measuemant of interest income.

The Coempanm categorices loan ass21s into stages primarky based on the Days Past Due stadus.

Stage 1 - 0-30 days past due
Stage I : 31-%0 days past dup
Stage 3 : More than 90 days past due
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Definition of default

The Company considers a financial asset to be in “default” and therefore Stage 3 [cradil impabred) for ECL colculations when the bossower becomes G0 days past

due on its contractual payments,

Exposure at default

“Exposure at Delault™ (EAD) reprecents the grass carrying amaunt of the assets subject 1o impasrment caloulation,

Estimations and assumptions used in the ECL madel

8.Loss given default” (LGD) i cormman for all three Stages and is based on loss in past partfalio. Actual cashflows on the past pertfolic are considered at

pertlolie basis for aeriving loss rate

b. “Frobability of Default™ (PD] is appliod on Stage 1, Stage 2 and S1age 3 postiolio . This is calculated a5 an average of periodic mevement of default rates.

Measuremaent of ECL
ECL i measured a5 follows:

- Financial assets that are not credit impaiced st the reporting date: for Stage 1 & 2, gross exposune is multiphed by PO and LGD pércentage to arrive at the ECL
- financial assets that ane credit impaired at the reporting dane: the difference brtween the gross exposure at reporting date and compated carrying amount

fonssdering EAD net of LGD ;

¢ Impalrment loss

Thie pepected credit 1055 alltwanoe for Mortgage loan is determined as foliows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Underparferming Loans- Impaired loans- Total
P:':""“F'" fanhg LHetime ECL-not credit Iifetime ec-credit
month ECL B ; e
Particulars impal npai
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2021 10.00 2.55 0.56 1311
ECL rate 0.46% 27235, 59. 10%
ECL Amaunt 0.05 069 0.33 107
Carrying amount (net of proviskn) 5.95 1.B& 0,23 12.04
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2020 16.08 013 0.68 16,89
ECL rate 1.41% BE.41%% 82 .69%
ECL Armount 023 0.11 0.56 0.90
Carrying amount (net of provisasn) 15.85% 0.0 D12 15.99
The expected crédit loss allowance Tor Quasi Martgage loan i determined as foliows:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Undarperforming Loans- Impaired loans- Taltal
m:: :L"" Lifetime ECL-not credit fifetime ecl-credit
Particulars impaired impaired
Grods cherying value as &t March 31, 2021 170.07 3782 12.73 220.62
ECL rate 0.84% 29, 3409 65.21%
ECL Aminl 1.42 11.06 8.30 20.78
Carrying amawent (net of provision) 168.65 26.76 4,43 155 B4
Gross carrying walue as at March 31, 2020 277,11 3.93 10,82 291.B6
ECL rate 2.00% 93.15% G3.42%
ECL Asmpunt 5.53 366 10,11 15,50
Carrying amount (net of provision) i71.5%8 0.27 0.71 172,56
The expected credit loss allowance for Hypothecaled joan & determined as follows:
Stagn 1 Stage 2 Stage ¥
Underparforming Loans- Impalred loans- Total
F“;r;“"“h" e Lifetime ECL-nat credit lifetime eci-credit
Lttt os impaired impairad
Particulars P pa
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2021 1,169.15 127.87 38.70 1,335,372
ECL rate 0.51% 24.03% 79,970,
ECL Amidunt E.00 30.73 30.9% G7.68
Carrying armaount {met af provision] 1,163,1% 9714 7.75 1, 268,04
Gross carrying value &5 at March 31, 2020 1,437.06 B.02 2761 1,471.69
ECL rata 1.199% 92.59% 96.29%
ECL Amouwnt 1708 TA5 26.58 E1.11
Carrying amaent (net of provision) 1,419,968 0.57 1.0% 1,421.56
o e
'F' ks N [‘-' - o

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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d

48.1

Lavel of Assessment- Aggregation criteris
The cormpany recognises the expected onedit losses (ECL) on a collective basis that takes inlo scoount comprehensiee credit rigk information. Considering the
econdmic and risk characteristics the company calculates ECL on a oollective hatss for ail stages - Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 assets

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs in relation to Mortgage loans is as follows:

Gross Exposure reconciliation:

Particulars Stage 1 Staga 2 Staga 3 Total
Gross carrying amount ag at March 31, 2019 15.84 005 064 16,53
changes dud 1o lans recognised in the opening

halances that have ;

- Transfer to stage 1 004 - {0.04) 5

= Transfer to stage 2 {0.13) 013 - -

- Transler to stage 3 {0.50) - 054 -
Loans originated/derecopnised during the year 0.83 . {0.08) 0,75
Write offs during the year (10,05 .:n.% {0.39
Gross carrying amount as ot March 31, 2020 16,08 0.13 0.68 m_ﬁ-
changes due to lpans recognised i (he apening

- Transfer to stage 1 0.07 . {0.07) .

- Transfer to stage 2 [2.48) .52 (0.04) .

- Transfer to stage 3 [0.49) {0.05} .54 -
Loans ariginabed/derecognited during the year {312} 10,05} o.01 {3.16)
werite offs during Lhe year {0.06) - {057} {0.63)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 10,00 .55 0.55 13,10
Cradit Risk {cont'd)

Reconciliation of ECL balances

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2019 0oz 0.0 0.57 0.63
changes due Lo ans recognised In the opening

balances that have

= Tramsfer to stage 1 ; . .

- Transder to stage 2 {011} 0.11 - -

- Transfer to stage 3 {D.41) - .41 -
Loans ariginated derscognised during the year [l ) . {0.11) 063
Writeé affs during the year : [0.03) (.31} {034}
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2020 0,23 0.11 0.56 0.
changes due o lpans recognised in the opening

= Transfer to stage 1 . - . .

- Transfer to stage 2 (0.66) 0.68 (3.02} -

= Tramsfer to stage 3 [0.29) (.03} 0.3z .
Loans griginated/derecognised during the year ory {0.07) (0.05) [ES
Wirite offs during the year . - [0.48) (0.8
ECL aliowances balances as at March 31, 2021 0.05 0.65 0.33 1.07

An analysls of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLS in relation to Quasi Mortgage loans Is as fallows:
Gross Exposure reconciliation:

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount as st March 31, 2019 I4E.2E 1,89 6,16 FECRES
changes due (o lans retagnesed in the opening

balances that have :

= Transter to stage 1 0.08 (0.05) [{1REER

= Transler to stage 2 [3.14) 314 - -

- Transfer to stoge 3 {877 (0.B5) Q.42 -
Loans originated/derscognised during the yoar .81 [ R .11 41,04
Write offs during the year 005 {0.51) [#.84) [5.50]
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 277,11 EXT) 10.82 251.87
chamges due to loans recognised in the apening

- Transfer to stage 1 0.30 {0.24} [D.06)

- Transfer to stage 2 {36,613} 36,95 (0.32)

= Transfer to stage 3 (5.88) (274} .62 -
Loans originated/derecognised disring the year {163.23) (0.0} {oL1%) {(63.45)
Write offs during the wear (0.50) - {7200 {780}
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 170.07 3I7.82 13,73 220,62
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Reconciliation of ECL balances

Particulars Stage 1 Stage & Stage 3 Total
ECL allowances balances as ot March 31, 2019 1,38 1.66 5,65 BA8
changes due to bans recognised bn the apening

balances that have

- Transfer to stage 1 - - -

= Transfer to stage 2 [2.92) 1.92 - "

- Transfer to sthge 3 (B.19) (D60} 8.7 -
Loans originabed/derecognised during the year 15.28 0.14 0.20 1562
Write olfs during ihe year bl {046} (4,54} (5.00)
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2020 5.53 R i0.11 19.30
changes due to eans recognised in the spening
batances thakt hawve :

- Transfer to stage 1 . - .

= Transfer to stage 2 [10.74) 10.79 {0.05) f

= Transfer (O siage 3 {4.49) {1.78) 6.27 o
Loans orkginated/derecognised during the year 11.13 {1.61) {1.27) 825
Write offs during the year {01} = (6. 76} {6.77
ECL allowances balances a5 at March 31, 2021 1.42 11.06 B30 iﬂ_ﬂl
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs In relation te Hypothecated loans is oe follows:

Gross Exposiure recanciliation:

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Terkal
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 760,22 332 1041 77345
changes due to kans recognised in the opening

balances that have :

= Trangler bo etage 1 .0 {D.01) - '

- Transler to stage 2 (5.42) £.42 - -

= Transfer to stage 3 {24.19) (0,60 24.79 -
Loans griginated/derecognised during the year TOE.E2 1.87% 2.48 711.07
Virite offs during the year {0.74) {1585 {5.51) {i2.23
g by ity b A L 8.02 2047 har2es
balances that hawe ;

= Transter to stage 1 0.25 012 {0.13) .

- Transier to stage 2 (126.05) 125,40 {0.35) =

- Transfer to stage 3 [27.46) 16.689) 34.35 -
Laans originated/derecognisad during the year (107,89) 050 {0.79) (103.18)
Wirite offs during the year . 15 (.04} {22.55} {28.78)
Grosd carrying amount 88 at March 31, 2021 1‘1é.15 127.87 3E.70 1,335.73

@8.1 Credit Risk {cont'd)
Reconcilistion of ECL balances
Farticulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2018 _g'éz 2.86 995 15.83
changes due to loans recogrised in the opening
balances that hawwe :

= Transfeér to stage 1 - .

= Transfer to stage 2 (5.03) 5.03 =

- Transfer Lo slags 3 (22.74) (0.58) 2333 .
Loamns ariginated/derecogaised during the year 41.83 1.83 264 4640
write offs during the year _¥ [1.79) [9.33) f11.12%
ECL allowances balances as at March 31, 2030 17.08 7.45 26.58 51,10
changes die to loans recognised in the cpening =
balances that have

= Transfer o slage 1 - - -

- Transfer to Llage 2 (30.28) 30,36 (0.08)

- Transfer ta stage 3 (21.497) (5.51) 2748 -
Loans originated/derecognised during the year 41,24 (1.53) [1.24) 18,47
Write offs during the year {0.07] [0.04) [21.79) (21.90)
ECL aliowances balances as at March 31, 2021 .00 30.73 30.95 67,68

Cash and cash equivalent and Bank deposits
Thie Cofmparty malntaing its bank balances in repubed banks and finangial instiutions. The credit risk is limited because the counterparties are banks with igh crediz
ratinas assianed by intemnatzanal credit fating aqencies.

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.



Aye Finance Private Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statements
All amaunts are in RS, crores unless othenwise stated

48.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk i the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the chligations associated with its financial ladilities (other than derivatives) that are
seithed by delivering cash or anather financial asset. The Company s approsch bd managing liquidity s to ensure as far a5 posséble, that it will have sufficient
ligquidity 1o reeet it linbilities when they ane due, Reler bo note 52.50 for the ALM as a part of the financs] staterments.

Liguadity risk management in the Company is managed as per the guidelines of Board-approved Asset-Liabdty Managemsent ["ALM ") Policy which is mondored by
the Asset Liability Committes. The ALM Policy provides the governance framework for the identification, measurement, manitaring and reportng of liguldity nsk
artsing out of Company's kending and borrowing activities. The Company maintains Mexibility in funding by maintaining awailability under committed credit lines.
Managemant moniters the Company’s liguidity positions (alsa comprising the undrawen boarrowing facilitied) and cash and cath squivalents on the bass of expected
cath Mows, Th Compary also takes inty acosunt lguidity of the market in which the BN OpRrates,

Haturities of financial liabilities

The tabbe below analyses non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company intoe relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining peried fram the reporting date
b Ehve contractual maturity date,

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Financial Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Liatiiities months months menths  months

Einarcial liabilities

Lease labilities 6.45 16.25 22,70 3.86 8.23 12.11
Diebi securithes I57.76 670,66 1,026.42 580,82 5A9.61 1,179.43
Borroviingsl cther than

debt securities) 111.34 165.94  297.28 57.08 215.99 7307
Other financial Rabikties 5,81 - 5,81 6.22 - 6.2
Taotal financial

liabilities 481.36 72 1 21 7. 70.83

48.3 Market risk

Market risk s thee risk that the fadr value of future cash flows of @ financial instrament will Muctuate because of changes in market prices, Markel risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rake risk, currency risk and other price risk, such &5 equity price risk and commaodity price risk. Financial mstrments affected by
market risk include forekgn curréncy necehvables.

a  Foreign currency risk

Currency risk 15 the risk thet the vakie of & financhal instrument will floctuste due to changes in forelgn exchange rates, Forelgn currency risk far the Company
arises majorly on account of foreign currency borrowings, When a derfvative 1S entened inte for the purpose of being &5 hedge, thi Company negotiabes the lenms
of those desivatives to match with the terms of the hedge exposure, The Company’s palicy is te fully hedge Bs foreign currsncy barrowings at the time of drawdown
and remain so til repayment.

The Company holds derhrative financiad instruments such &% creds currency interest rate swap to mitigate risk of changes in exchange rate in fereign currency and
flanting ntenest rate. The counterparty for Chise contracls is generally & bank. These déridative financlal indtruments bre valeed based on guoted prices for simiar
assets and liabditees in active markets or inputs that ase directly or indirectly chservable in market place.

Thie carrying amounts of the Company’s forelgn currency exposure 3t the end of the reparting perled are a5 follows @

A at A% at
Particulars Currency March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fimancial liabilities in R, s 118 AT AL
Financial liabilities In A%, ELRD B ] .
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45,3 Market Righ [cont'd)

b.  Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of @ financial instrement will ucluste because of change In market inberest rates. The Company does not
hawve any exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates as the company does not have any borrowings/leans on flectuating Interest rates except

follpwing: -

b.1 Lisbilities
Particulars

Dabt sacurities

Variabie rate

Fived rate

Borrewings [othar than debt)
Variable rate

Fixed rate

Sensitivity analysis
increase by B0 basis points
decrease by B0 basis poinis

b.2 Assots

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,028.432 1,179.43
52.59 7782
FLONC 195,15
042 0,23
042 0.23

The Company's fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate depos®s and therefore not subject to interest rate sk, since neither the carmping

armaunt nor the futue cash Aaws will fuctuate because of a change in market interest rates.
Leans exteénded by the Company are all foced rate loans

& Price risk exposure

The Company's Inwestmient i Mitual Funds B exposed ta pricing risk. Other fnancial instruments teld by the company does nol posoest any risk associated with

trading.

Investments

Sengitivity analysis
increase by 45
detreage by 4%

AR

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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a5 Loascs

49.1.1 Carrying value of right of use assets: Total
Particulars
Balance at March 31, 2019 5.60
Additions 10,53
deletion £
Depreciation charge for the year (4.60]
Balance at March 31, 2020 #ﬁﬁ%
Bdditions 14.4
Deletions {0.02)
Deprecialion charge for the year [5.62)
Balance at March 31, 2021 20,37

49.1.2 Carrying value of Lease liabilities:

Total

Particulars
Balance at March 31, 2019 5.71
Additions 10,17
Finance cost 1,57
Lease payments {5.34)
Balance at March 31, 2020 liiéi
Additions 14.0G6
Finance cost 1.81
Leass payments [5.28)
Balance at March 31, 2021 E¥: E

48.1.3 Maturity analysis of lease Habilities

Maturity analysis — contractual
undiscounted cash flaws

Less than one year

One to five years

Mare than five years

Total undiscounted leasa liabilities at
March 31, 2021

49.1.4 Amounts recognised in prafit or loss

Particulars
Interest cn lease liabilicies
Depreciation on ROU assets

Total

48.1.5 Cash outflow of leases

Particulars

Cash outflow of leases
Leasa payments

Lepses Security Deposits
5.43 0.17
1017 0.36
{4,456} (0,14}
11.14 0.39
14.05 043
(0.02) :
(5.35) {0.23)
19.78 0.59
Leases Security Deposits
571
10.17 4
1.57 -
§5.34})
12.11
14.06 -
1.81 ;
(5.28)
22.70 -
As at As at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

7.79 5.22

19.18 9.70

3.13 0.36

30.10 i5.28
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1.81 1.57

5,38 4.46

—ﬂ d"
As at As at

March 31, 2021

5.28

March 31, 2020

5.34

49.1.6 Break up value of the Current and Non - Current Lease Liabilities for the year anded March 31, 2021

Particulars

Current lease liabilities
Kon-curment lease liabilities
Tatal 5

AS at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

6.45
16.25

_— 3700

H:
8.23
_::LE&:LL
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50 Financial instruments and Fair value dizsclosures

Valuation principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction In the principal {or most
advantageaws) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (l.e., an exit price), regardliess of whether that price is directlyf
indirectly observable or estimated using a valuation technigue. In order (o shiow how fair values have been derived, linancial instruments are classified
based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques.

Fair Value hierarchy of Asset and Liabilities measured at fair valua

As at March 31, 2021
Particula
i e Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
At fair value through Profit and Loss
Derivative Liability
- Forward curréncy Swhps 1.79 _ 1.79
Investments 6.29 - - 629
Total 65.29 1.79 = 8.08
As at March 31, 2020
Particula
i Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At fair value through Profit and Loss
Derivative Asset
- Forward currency swaps i 2 i 3R
Investments 5.85 - 5.H5
Total 5.85 3.2B - 9.13

Fair Value hisrarchy of Asset and Liabilities not measured at fair value
The management assessed that camrying value of financial asset and financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair value and hence
their carryving values are deemed to be fair values,

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Loans

Mast of the loans are repriced frequently, with interest rate of loans reflecting currént market pricing. Hence carrying value of loans is deermed to be
equivalent of falr value.

Borrowings

Debt securities and barrowings are fixed rate borrowings and fair value of these fixed rate borrowings is determined by discounting expected future
contractual cash flows using current market interest rates charged for similar new loans and carrying value approximates the fair valee for ficed rate
borrowing at financial statement level. The Company's barfowings wihich are at floating rale approdimates the Tair value.

Shaort Term and Other Financial Assets and Liabilities
The management assessed that cesh and cash equivalents, investments, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial Rabifities
approcimate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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51.A Disclosures pursuant to Reserve bank of India notification DOR (NBFC).CC.PO.NG.109/22.10.106/ 2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 pertaining to Asset
Classification as per RBI Norms

the year March 31, 2021

e Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Ditfaranca
= . LT cation as [Provisions) as Hat Carrying Provisions reguired as |between Ind AS
¢ Clasgification 5% per RBI N
A e AME lper Ind AS 109 :"5“““ i par Tod requirad undar Ind |Amaunt e TRACIP merms 109 provistons and
AL 103 IRACPK miree
i) (3] {3} 3] {S}={3}-(4] {6} [7)=[8)-(6}
Parfarmi 5
1 1,349, 23 7.4 1,341 76 570 (i3]
=andand ¥ BTCNT] 37, 7576 H EI
Subtatal 1,517.47 FTEE 1,467.52 19,20 30.85
NGn-Parforming Aseets (NPA]
Substandard Stage 3 LT 3547 10.92 38 35 [ZE7
Dowbiful - upto | vear ii_;we 3 553 411 148 39 {848}
TERT IIM ] - \ 2 r :
e than 3 vears B : = " . -
I for 1 5.59 4.1 14 559 [1LaR]
LOA% pSSELE - s - -
Subtotal for HPFA EEage 1 5198 35,58 1740 4393 [4.35]]
DRy (L0MS SUCh 35 JUsBrantees, loan
‘porvritments, ele. which are in the scope |Stage 1
af Ind AS 109 but not coversd ungder 2 - -
current Encomag Rocogmitacn, Asset
Chassificaticn and Provisioning {IRACF) Stage 2 . -
nerms -
Stage 3 . g =
|Stage 134933 747 1341 B0
= [Staga 164, 24 [FET] 125,76 P
R 39.58 1240 43151
1,5659.45 09,53 1,479.93 63,03

Node:-The above table discloses the provishons amounts as per TRACE morms, while the Compary Fas made 3 provisions of ron-perlcming assets a5 per e Compary's pobicy which i in

wxcess of the IRACPE nasms.

Note:-The abave amounts does not include the enpact of E1R on applicable fees and inferest ecriesd on customer lgans.
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51.B Disclosures pursvant to Reserve bank of India notification DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 pertaining to
Assat Classification as por RBI Norms

For the year March 31, 2020

& Carrylig Logs Allpwances Difference between
Assal classification as {Provigcions) as Mot Carrying Provisions required as  |Ing AS 109
Assel Classification as par RBI Norms por Ind AS 106 :;'lm.lnl as par Ind required undor Ind [Amaunt I"' TRACP ngrms provisions and
AS 109 IRACP morms
[[EV] (2] 3) [y [S)={3}-{4} [3] [7i={4}-{5}
P LiidLi] rg_
tage 1 1,T32.E4 23284 1, T L 13,82
Standard Stagn ¥ 1261 1174 D.ﬁ ¥ 11.07 ]
Subtogal 1,745.25 34. 1, 710.67 B9 24.83 |
Hon-P rm sets &)
Subsgancard SE 3 JB5F .21 1.HG 4, 74 3197
Doubafd - up to L year LAQE 3 003 [E] . (K
1to 3 yoars Bl = - = .
More than 3 years 5 3 =. = - -
[Subtotal for doubiful 8.0% 0.63 : 563 :
LOgE pssets - L = - .
I for MPA Sitage 3 ELNT] 36.74 1,86 4,77 31.97
Other meme such 24 quasrantess, loan
comeTatmaents, eic. which are in the soope [Stage §
of Ind AS 109 But not Cavensd under L
current Income Recognition, Asset
Chassification ang Provisianing (JRACF)  [Stape 2 -
TS
|Stage 3 B B B .
Eg:n L 1, 71254 B4 1, 70, B0 9.03 3 B2
vsial [Stage 2 L2461 L] -u.g? 067 07
lign? ] :?F .74 1.86 477 57
ota 1,78 _5- FE.33 1,712 53 id

Hote:-The abowe Table discloses the provisions amounts a< per IRACP ngrmsg, while the Company has made 3 provision of nan-pecfoaming assets 35 per the Company™s policy which is in

exiess of thee [RACP norms,

Bigte:-The sbove amounts does nol indude the impadt of EIR on applicable fees snd inberest sctrued oh casiomer lgans.

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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52

52.1

52.2

52.3

Additional information to the financial statements

RBI circular RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17
September 01, 2016, updated as on February 17, 2020.

summary of Significant Accounting Policies -

Refer to note 2 of Financial Statements for summary of significant accounting policies,

Capital

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

i)

CRAR (%)

41.18%

30.95%

ii)

CRAR - Tier 1 Capital (%)

41.18%

30.95%:

iy

CRAR - Tier 1I Capital (%)

0.00%

0.00%

iv}

Amount of subordinated debt raised as
Tier-11 capital

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt
Instruments

Investments

(Amount in Rs, crores)

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

(1)

Value of Investments

(i)

Gross Value of Investments

(a) | InIndia

198.17

6.88

(b} | Qutside India

(ii) Provisions for Depreciation

[a) In India

(b) | Outside India

(i) Net Value of Investments

{a) | InIndia

198.17

6.88

(b} | Cutside India

(2)

Movament of provisions held towards depreciation
on investments

(i) Opening balance
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Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

(i) | Add : Provisions made during the year

(iif) Less Write-off/ write-back of excess

Provisions during the year

(v} | Closing Balance

52.4 Derivatives

52.4.1 Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

{Amount in Rs. crores)

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
(i} | The notional principal of swap agreements 162.72 34.5
(i1} | Losses which would be incurred if counterparties =
failed to fulfil their obligations under the
agreements
(ili} | Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering -
into swaps
{iv) | Concentration of credit risk arising from the - -
swaps®
{v) | The fair value of the swap book {1.79) 3.28

* Counter- party for all swaps entered into by the Company are Scheduled Commercial banks.

52.4.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

{(Amount in RS, crores)

S.Mo. Particulars Amount
(i) MNotional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during
the year {instrument-wise)
a) NIL
b} MIL
c) NIL
(i) Motional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on
31st March 2016 (instrument-wise)
a) NIL
b} HIL
c) NIL

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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Additional information to the financial statements

5.No. Particulars Amount

(i} Motional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not
“highly effective” {instrument-wise)

a) NIL
b) NIL
c) MIL

[iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly
effective” (instrument-wise)

a) NIL
b} MIL
c) MIL

52.4.3 Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Qualitative Disclosures

The Company undertakes the derivatives transaction to prudently hedge the risk in context of a
particular borrowing or to diversify sources of borrowing and to maintain fixed and floating berrowing
mix. The Company does not indulge into any derivative trading transactions. The Company reviews, the
proposed transaction and ouwtline any censiderations associated with the transaction, including
Identification of the benefits and potential risks (worst case scenarios); an independent analysis of
potential savings from the proposed transaction. The Company evaluates all the risks inherent in the
transaction viz., counter party risk, Market Risk, Operational Risk, basis risk etc.

Credit risk is controlled by restricting the counterparties that the Company deals with, to those whe
either have banking relationship with the Company or are internationally renowned or can provide
sufficient information. Market/Price risk arising from the Ffuctuations of interest rates and foreign
exchange rates or from other factors shall be clesely monitored and controlled. Nermally transaction
entered for hedging, will run over the life of the underlying instrument, irrespective of profit or loss.
Liguidity risk Is controlled by restricting counterparties to those who have adeguate facility, sufficient
information, and sizable trading capacity and capability to enter into transactions in any markets
around the world.

The respective functions of trading, confirmation and settlement should be performed by different
personnel. The front office and back-office role is well defined and segregated. All the derivatives
transactions are quarterly monitored and reviewed. All the derivative transactions have to be reported
to the board of directers on every gquarterly board meetings including their financlal positions,

Quantitative Disclosures

S.No. | Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Currency Interest Rate | Currency Interest  Rate
Derivatives* Cerivatives Derivatives* Derivatives
1} Derivative (Motional 162.72 - 34.5 =
Principal Amount) - for
hedging
2) Marked to Market (1.79) - 3.28 =
positions
3) Credit Exposure 162.72 - 34.5 -
4) Unhedged exposures & . & -

« Cross currency interest rate swap
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52.4 Disclosures relating to Securitisation

Refer Note No. 44 of the financial statements,

Additional information to the linancial statements

52.5 Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets & Liabilities

As at March 31, 2021

(Amount in Bs. Crores)

0 day to 3] 15 Over 1| Over2 | Over3 | Overs | Over1 | Over Over 5 Total
7days | days | days | month | manths | months | months year 3 years
to 14 to up to 2 up to B & & years
days | 30/31 | menths 3 up ko up to up to &
days monkths & 1 3 up to
months |  year yEars 5
years
Deposits - = - - - = = = -
Advances* 70.74 - - 75.96 | 74.21 | 218.64 | 410.28 | 663.10 | 69.41 7.95 1590.29
Investments -
* 212.56 65.00 | 73.91 23.01 84.72 21.74 2.10 . 2.94 485.98
Borrowing* 34.30 3.90 | 4.54 17.46 24.561 118.28 | 233.05 | 650.39 | 73.25 0.02 1159.80
Fareign
Currency
Assels e = = = = = - = o
Foreign
Currency
Liabilities - - - - - 165.90 - - 165.90
As at March 31, 2020 (Amount in Rs. Crores)
0 day 8 15 days | Ower Over2 | Over3 | Qvert Over 1 Over3 | Over 5 Total
to 7 days to i months | months | months | year & | years & | years
days | to 14 | 30/31 month up ko B & up to3 | up to 5
days days up to 3 up to | up tel years years
2 months & year
month meonths
5
Deposits - - - z = 2 = : 3
Advances * 31.06 - - 42.08 52.28 115.37 | 529.27 | 992.14 25.44 0.51 1,788.15
Investments =
* 56.92 - 2.68 2.96 12.35 25.37 12.07 - 0.25 112.60
Borrowing®
- - 11.79 29,65 41.60 169.70 | 335.44 709.32 | 117.31 1,414.81
Foreign
Currency
Assets # - - - - = - -
Foreign
Currency
Liabilities ¥ = = - - 37.69 = - A7.69
Notes

* EIR on borrowings and advances has been considered in the 1-3 years bucket.
* Accrued interest on borrowings has been considerad in the 1-3 years bucket.
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* The advances are gross of impairment loss allowance,
* Investments include the amount of deposits with banks
* Advances and borrowings are inclusive of the securitisation transactions which have not been de-recognised in

the books of accounts in accordance with Ind AS 109.

* Above ALM does not consider cash balance existing as on balance shest date.

52.6 Exposures

52.6.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

{Amount In Rs, Crores)

March 31, March 31,
Category 2021 2020
& Direct Exposure
(i) Residential Mortgages - 231.08 WIL
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential 231.08 MIL
property that is or will be occupied by the
borrower or that is rented
{ii)y | Commercial Real Estate - 2.65 MIL
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real 2.65 NIL
estates (office buildings, retaill space, multi- purpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises,
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition,
development and conskruction, etc.). Exposure would
also include non-fund based limits
(i) | Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities{MBS) MIL NIL
and other securitised exposures -
a) Residential MIL NIL
b} Commercial Real Estates NIL NIL
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector #ERES ML

52.6.2 Exposure to Capital Market

{Amount in Rs, crores)

securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-ariented mutual funds;

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{1 Cirect investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, MNIL WIL
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt;
(i) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other MIL MIL
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Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

i) Adwvances for any other purposes where shares or MWIL MIL
convertible bonds ar convertible debentures or units of
eguity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary
security;

(iv) Advances for any other purpeses to the extent secured NIL NIL
by the collateral security of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security
other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equity eriented mutual funds'
does not fully cover the advances;

(v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and MIL MIL
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and
market makers;

(vi} Loans sanctioned te corporates against the security of MIL MIL
shares / bonds [ debentures or ather securities or an
clean basis for meeting promoter's cantribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources;

{vii) | Bridge loans to companies against expected equity NIL NIL
flows J Issues;

{vili} | &l exposures to \enture Capital Funds (both MIL MIL
registered and unregisterad)

MIL L
Total Exposure to Capital Market -

52.7 Details of financing of parent company products
The Company doesn’t have parent Company, hence this clause is not applicable.

52.8 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
The Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limit {(SGL) i.e. 15% of its Owned fund / Group
Borrower Limit (GBL) i.e. 25% of its own fund, during the March 31, 2021.

52.9 Unsecured Advances
The Company has given Rs, 1,356.55 crores of unsecured loans.

52.10. Miscellaneous

52.10.1 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company does not hold any other registration other than NBFC registration frorm REI,

Registration/ License Registration/ License Registration/ License Authority
Authority issuing the Authority issuing the issuing the
Certificate of registration Reserve Bank Of India B-14.03323
I -,":\-lTa-i
et
\' 1
& |
w
7\
*x /
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52.10.2 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators —

Mo penalties were imposed by the regulator during the year ended March 31, 2021.

52.10.3 Related Party Transactions

Refer note 37 of Financial Statements for related party transaction disclosure,

52.,10.4 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Rating Purpose

Financial Year

Rating Assigned

Rating Outlook

Aye Finance Private FY 2020-21 [IND] A- Stable
Limited by India Ratings &

Research

2). Fund based term loan FY 2020-21 [ICRA] BBB* Stable
of INR 55.6 crores

b). NCD 446,

) Bk rEoRe [ICRA] BBB* Stable
Aye Finance Private FY 2019-20 [IND] A- Stable
Limited by India Ratings &

Research

a). Fund based term loan Fy 2019-20 [1CRA) BBB® - Stable
of INR 55.6 crares

b). NCD 478.80 crores [ICRA] BBB* Stable
c). NCD 20 crores by ICRA [ICRA] A (CE) Stable

52.11 Additional Disclosures

52.11.1 Provisions & Contingencies

(Amount In Rs. Crore)

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under March 31, March 31,
the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 2020
Provisions for depreciation on Investment -
Prowvision towards Stage 3 39.58 36.54
Provision made towards Income tax net of deferred tax - 2.11
Other Provision and Contingencies - -
Provision for Stage 1 and Stage 2 459,95 9.61

109



MNotes forming part of the linancial statements

52 Additional information to the financial statements
52.11.2 Draw Down from Reserves

The Company has not made any drawdown from the reserve during the year,

52.12 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
The Company has not taken any deposits from any party. The below amounts does not include the impact of EIR on

applicable fees and interest accrued on customer loans.

52.12.1 Concentration of Advances
{Amount in Rs. Crore

p— March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tatal Advances to twenty largest borrowers $79 80
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to 0.24% 0.27%
Total Advances of the NBFC

52.12.2 Concentration of Exposures
{Aamount in Rs. Crore)

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4,42 4.89

Total Exposure to twenty largest

borrowers,/Customers

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest 0.21% 0.28%

borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC

on borrowers [ customers

* the above does not include the investment in debts mutual funds and total assets has been considered for the
purpese of calculation.

52.13.3 Concentration of NPAs

iisticiais March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
) 0.38 0.35
Total Exposure to top four credit impaired accounts
52.12.4 Sector-wise NPAs
S. Ne. Sector Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector
1 Agriculture & allied activities -
2 MSME 3.27%
3 .
Corporate borrowers
4 ) -
Services
=]
Unsecured personal loans
8 Auto loans =
7 Cther personal loans =

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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52.12.5 Movement of NPAs
(Amount in Rs. Crore)
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
{i) Net MPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.80%: 0.11%
(i) Mowverment of NPAs {Gross)®
(a) Opening balance 39.67 17.22
(b) Additions during the year 44.51 3B.B9
(c) Reductions during the year (32.20) {16.44)
(d) Clesing balance 51.98 39.67
(i1 Movement of Net NPAs™
{a) Opening balance 2.41 1.04
(b} Additions during the year 10.44 2.35
c) Reductions during the year {0.45) {0.98)
(d) Closing balance 12.40 2.41
(iv) | Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on
standard assets) *
{a) Opening balance 37.26 16.18
{b) Additions during the year 34.07 36.54
(e Reductions during the year (31.75) (15.46)
(d) Closing balance 39.58 37.26

*The above amounts dees net include the impact of EIR on applicable fees and interest accrued on customer loans.

52.13 Overseas Assels
The Company does not own any assets outside the country.

52.14 Off = balance sheet SPVs sponsorad
The Company does not have any off balance sheet SPV sponsored either demestic or overseas.
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53.15 Disclosure of Complaints
S.No Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a) No. of camplaints pending at the beginning - ]
of the year
(b} Mo. of complaints received during the year 108 410
{c) Mo. of complaints redressed during the year 107 419
(d} Mo. of complaints pending at the end of the 1 -
year

52.16 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
Refer note 32 of Financial Statements for disclosure pertaining to corporate social respansibility expenses,
52.17 Disclosure on frauds pursuant to RBI Master Direction
The frauds detected and reported for the year amounted to Rs. 0.07 crores (March 31, 2020 Rs. 0.02 crores).
52,18 COVID 19 Disclosures in terms of RBI notification no. DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20
dated April 17, 2020 pertaining to Asset Classification and Provisioning in terms of COVID 19
Regulatory Package
In accordance with Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") guidelines relating to 'COVID-1% — Regulatory Package'
dated March 27, 2020 and subsequent guideline on EMI moratorium dated April 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020
("RBI regulatory package”), the company has offered moratorium on the payment of installments falling
due between March 1, 2020 te August 31, 2020 (“moratorium period”) te all eligible borrowers. In
accordance with RBI guidelines, the moratorium period, wherever granted, is excluded from no. of days
past dues for the purpose of asset classification. The company holds provision as at March 31, 2021/March
31, 2020 against the potential impact of COVID 15 based on the information available up to a point in time.
Disclosures as required by RBI circular dated April 17, 2020 'COVID-19 Regulatary Package — Asset
classification and provisioning are given below:
5.No. | Particulars Amount (in Rs. crores) as at
March 31, 2021
1. Advance outstanding In SMA/Overdue” categories where the 26.40
moraterium/deferment was extended, in terms of paragraph 2
and 3 of the circular (as on February 29, 2020)*
2, Respective amounts where assets classification benefit was 11.93
extended*
3. Provision made in terms of paragraph 5 of'the circular (As B.10
per paragraph 4 applicable to MBFC's covered under IND
ASY*
4. Provision adjusted against slippages in terms pf paragraph 6 of 7.75
the circular*
5. Residual provision as of in terms of paragraph 6 of the 0.34
circular*
-

Advance outstanding of accounts under SMA/Overdue category is as of March 31, 2021,

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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52.19 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector - Restructuring of advances

The Company has restructured the accounts as per REI dircular circulars DBR.No.BP.BC.100/21.04.048/2017-18
dated February 07, 2018, DBR.No.BP.BC.108/21.04.048/2017-18 dated June &, 2018, circular
DBR.No.BP.BC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January 1, 2019, circular DOR.No. BP.BC.34/21.04.048/2019-20 dated
February 11, 2020 and DOR.MNo.BP.BC/4/21.04,048/2020-21 dated August 06, 2020,

Particulars March 31, 2021

Mo. of accounts restructured 10,508

Amount (Rs. in ‘crores’)*

142.19

*Balances are as at March 31, 2021

52.20 Details of Interest on Interest during the moratorium period

In accordance with the RBI notification dated April 7 2021, the Company is required to refund/adjust ‘interest on
interest’ to borrowers. As required by RBI notification, the methodology for calculation of such interest on interest
has recently been circulated by the Indian Banks® Association. The Company has recorded the hability towards
estimated interest relief of Rs. 0.04 crores and reduced the same from the interest income.

52,21 Details of the Code on Secial Security, 2020 {"CODE’) relating to employee benefits

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ("Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment
benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India.
However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation
have not yelt been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will
recard any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

52.22 The Company owns $9,899% of Foundation for Advancement of Micro Enterprises (FAME), incorporated under
Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, to carry on social responsibility activities. The financial statements of FAME
are not considered for consolidation since the definition of control is not met as the Company's objective is not to
obtain economic benefits from the activities of FAME.

52.23 Transactions with Non-Executive Directors

Sr. | Name of Non-Executive Director | Transaction Type | March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Mo.

1 M K Maini Payment of sitting 0.13 0.11
fees

2 Kanika Tandon Bhal Payment of sitting 0.10 0.08
fees

3 Vinay Baijal Payment of sitting 0.10 0.08
fees

Total 0.33 0.27
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52.24 Postponement of Revenue Recognition

There is no significant uncertainty which requires postponement of revenue recognition.

52.25 Details of Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Payment against the supplies from the undertakings covered under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 are generally made in accordance with the agreed credit terms.

On the basis of information and record available with the management, there are no outstanding balances of such
suppliers and interest due on such accounts as on March 31, 2020,

The Company has neither paid any interest nor such amount is payable to buyer covered under the MSMED Act,
2008,

52.26 Details of Non-Performing Financial Assets purchased/sold
The Company has neither purchased or sold any non performing financial asset during 2020-21 and 2019-20,
52.27 Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

The Company has not imported any goods therefore value of import on CIF basis Is Ml (As on March 31, 2020 =
Mil}.

52.28 Disclosures as required for liquidity risk

a. Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Mumber of significant counter parties ? 7
Amount {in Cr) 992,63 913.66
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits N.A. MN.A.
Percentage of funding concentration to total liabilities 71.43% 61.10%

b. Top 20 large deposits

deposits

c.Top 10 borrowings

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Total amount of tep 20 deposits M.A, MN.A.
Percentage of amount of top 20 deposits to total N.A NA

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Total amount of top 10 borrowings

1098.13

1038.93

Fercentage of amount of top 10 borrowings to total
borrowings

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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d. Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
:;'_ Name of the instrument/product March 31, 2021 q:i:;i};?it:nl:
1 | Nen-Convertible Debentures {Secured) £89.95 B4.04%
2 | Term Loans 167.53 12.06%
3 Borrowing under securitization arrangement 118.39 8.52%
4 | External commercial barrowings g82.97 5,97%
5 | Non-Convertible Debentures (Unsecured) 55,49 3.99%
6 | Working Capital/Line of credit/Overdraft Facility 11.37 0.82%
> | Name of the instrument/product March 31, 2020 "fi:;ifi:'i‘::
1 Mon-Convertible Debantures (Secured) 790.41 52.86%
2 Term Loans 38.04 2.54%
3 Borrowing under securitization arrangement 220.61 14.75%
4 | External commercial borrowings 290.04 19.40%
3 | Non-Convertible Debentures (Unsecured) 0B.09 6.62%
& | Werking Capital/Line of credit/Overdraft Facility 14.41 0.96%
e, Stock ratio
:; Stock Ratios March 31, 2021 "amggzla
1 | Commercial papers as a % of total public funds MN.A. M.A.
2 | Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities M.A. MN.A,
3 | Commercial papers as a % of total assets MN.A. M.A.
Mon-Convertible Debentures as a % of total public N.A N.A.
4 | funds
ﬂnr!-_c_nnvertlhle Debentures as a % of total Nk NA.
S _ | liabilities
6 | Non-Convertible Debentures as a % of total assets MN.A. LA,
Other short-term liabilities as a % of total public 38.0B%
7 | funds 46.45%
B | Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 37.19% 45.12%
9 | Other short-term liabilities as a % of total assets 24.19% 33.53%

52.29 Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all
of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities:

The Company has transferred certain pools of fixed rate loan receivables backed by underlying assets by entering
into securitisation transactions with the Special Purpose Vehicle Trusts (SPV Trust) sponsored by financial
institution for consideration received in cash at the inception of the transaction.

The Company, being Originator of these loan recelvables, also acts as Servicer with a responsibility of collection of
receivables from its borrowers and depositing the same In Collection and Payout Account maintained by the SPV
Trust for making scheduled payouts to the investors in Pass Through Certificates (PTCs) issued by the SPV Trust.
These securitisation transactions also requires the Company to provide for first loss credit enhancement In various
forms, such as corporate guarantee, cash collateral etc. as credit support in the event of shortfall in collections
from underlying loan contracts. By virtue of existence of credit enhancement, the Company is exposed to credit
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risk, being the expected losses that will be incurred on the transferred loan receivables to the extent of the credit
enhancement provided. In view of the above, the Cempany has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ewnership of the financial asset and thereby does not mest the derecognition criteria as set out in Ind-AS 109
Consideration received in this transaction is presented as 'Borrowing under Securitisation’ under Note 14,

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at amortised cost 124.32 309,64
Carrying amount of associated liabilities (Debt securities 82.98 290.03
measured at amortised cost)
53. Changes in Liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars April 1, 2020 Cash flows | Exchange Other March 31, 2021

difference
Debt securities 1179.43 (151.01) - 1028.42
Borrowings (other than 52.28 248.20 5.08 305.56
debt securities)
Borrowings under 220.79 (229.07) - {8.28) |
securitisation
Total 1452.50 (131.88) 5.08 1325.70
Particulars April 1, 2019 Cash flows | Exchange Other March 31, 2020
difference

Debt securities 551.96 627.47 - 1179.43
Borrowings (other than 174.08 {124.99) 3.19 52.28
debt securities)
Borrowings under 53.01 167.78 - 220.79 |
securitisation
Total 7749.05 670.26 3.19 1452.50

Aye Finance Pvt. Ltd.
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Motes forming part of the financial statements
All amounts are In RS, orores unless otherwise stated

B4 Consequent to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Indian government announced & lockdown in March 2020, Subsequeently, the national
lackdown was lifted by the government for certain activities in a phased manner outsige specified contalnment rones, bul regional
lackdownsrestrictions continued to be implemented in areas with a significant number of COVID-19 cases,

The impact of COVID-19, including changes in customer Behavior and pandermic fears, as well a5 restrictions on business and ndhadual activities,
has led to significant wolatility in global and Indian financial markets and 2 significant decrease in global and local economic activities. The shywdown
during the year led to a decrease In loan originations, and collection efficikency.

The extent ta which the COVID-19 pandemic, including the current “second wave” that has significantly increased the number of cases in India, will
continue to impact the Company's eperations and estimates related to Impairment of assets including loans to customers, will depend on future
developments, including, amang othér things, any new nfarmation concerning the severity of the COWVID- 19 pandemic and any action to contain s
spread or mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by the Company.

In accordance with Reserve Bank of India guidelines relating to CoWlD-19 Regulatory package dated March 2¥, 2020 April 17, 2020 and May 23,
2020, the Company had offered moratarium on the payment of all instalments andfor interest, &5 applicable, falling dug between March 1, 2020 to
August 31, 2020 to afl eligible borrowers. Further, the Company offered resolution plan fo its customers pursuant to RBI's guideline ‘Micro, Small
and Medium Entérprises (MSME) sector — Restructuring of Advances” dated & August 2020.

Estimates and assumptions appbied in préparing these financial results, especially for deterrining the impairment allowanee for the Company s
financial assets (Loans), are based on historical experience and other emearging/forward locking factors that take into conslderathon the impact of
the pandemic. The Company believes that the factors considered are reascnable under the current circumstanges, Given the dynamic nature of the
pandemic situation, these estimates are subject to uncertainty and maybe affected by severity &nd duration of the pandemic. In the event the
impact of the pandemic is more severe or prolonged than anticipated, this will have 8 corresponding mpact en the carrying value of financial
assets, the financial position and performance of the Company.

B85  There are no significant subsequent events that have occurred after the regorting period bl the date of approval of these financial statements,

56 The fgures for the previous periods have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary bo conform to current period presentation.

Far 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behall of the board of Directers
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Disclosures

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES UNDER REGULATION 53 OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCOSURE

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS 2015

to firms/companies in which directors are
interested by name and amount.

S Name of the Related | Nature of Transactions Disclosures of amounts at the
No. Party year end and the maximum
amount of loans/ advances/
Investments outstanding during
the year (in INR)
1 Holding Company Loans and advances in the nature of loans | Nil
to subsidiaries by name and amount.
Loans and advances in the nature of loans | Nil
to associates by name and amount.
Loans and advances in the nature of loans | Nil
to firms/companies in which directors are
interested by name and amount.
Investments by the loanee in the shares of | Nil
parent company and subsidiary company,
when the company has made a loan or
advance in the nature of loan.
2 Subsidiary Company | Loans and advances in the nature of loans | Nil
from Holding Company by name and
amount.
Loans and advances in the nature of loans | Nil
to associates by name and amount.
Loans and advances in the nature of loans | Nil

Disclosures of transactions of the Company with any person or entity belonging to the
promoter/promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more shareholding in the Company, in the format
prescribed in the relevant accounting standards for annual results - Refer Note 37 of the Financial

Statements for FY 20-21.
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